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PROCEEDI NGS
(Cctober 5, 2000; 1:00 p.m)

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: | want to wel cone
everyone to the final two days of hearing that the board
has scheduled in order to exam ne the potenti al
envi ronnental inpact of natural gas-fired electrical
power generating facilities, comonly referred to as
peaker plants. M nane is Any Jackson, and |I'mthe
attorney assistant to Board Menber El ena Kezelis, and at
the request of Board Chairman Claire Manning, |I'm
serving as the hearing officer for these proceedings.
I"lI'l ask you all to bear with ne. |I'mfighting a bad
cough and throat thing, so if ny voice goes out at sone
poi nt during the hearing, please just bear that in mnd.

W' re very happy to have the entire board present
today, and | want to take a nonent to introduce all of
our board nenbers to you. Board Chairnman d aire Manning
is inmmediately behind ne.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Wl come.  Good aft er noon,
everyone.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  To ny imredi ate left is
Board Menber El ena Kezelis.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Good after noon.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Marili MFawn.
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BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Hel | o.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  And Ronal d Fl emal .

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Hell o.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  To ny right is Tanner
Grard.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD:  Good aft er noon.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Ni chol as Mel as.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Cood afternoon.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  And up next to Chairnman
Manni ng i s Sanuel Lawton, Jr.

BOARD MEMBER LAWION:  Good aft er noon.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: W al so have the board's
technical unit present, and they are also sitting up
here at the head tables. Anand Rao is up to ny right.

MR RAO Hello.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: And Alisa Liuis to ny
left.

M5. LIU  Hello.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Before | continue with
some brief procedural matters, | will invite Chairnman
Manni ng to nmake any openi ng remarks that she has.

Chai rman Manni ng?

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Good afternoon, everyone. Thank
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schedul ed hearing in the board's inquiry hearings
concer ni ng peaker plants. As nost of you know- | see a
lot of familiar faces here this norning-- this
afternoon; a lot of unfamliar faces as well. Mst of

you know, however, that Governor Ryan has asked us to
ook into the potential environnental inpacts of
proposed peaker plants. He's done this in response to
the nyriad of citizens' concerns he's heard throughout
his travels in the state, particularly in the northwest
area of the state. W're happy to be in Springfield
today too to address any concerns that we have downstate
and to address all the renmaining concerns during these
| ast two days of hearing.

The board is especially well-equi pped to address
t hese concerns for the CGovernor and for interested
nmenbers of the General Assenbly. That's because-- and
I've explained in previous proceedings-- we're an
i ndependent body of seven technically-qualified
i ndi vidual s, and our general responsibilities are to
promul gate the State's environnental regulations and to
adj udi cate any environnental matters that occur under

t he Environnental Protection Act.
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us to engage in these proceedings outlined five specific
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i ssue areas, and in terns of the context of this

proceeding, | would |like to address those, actually read

those issue areas to you for a full context of this
pr oceedi ng.

The first issue is whether peaker plants need to be
regul ated nore strictly than Illinois current air
quality statutes or regul ations provide

The second issue is whether peaker plants pose a
uni que threat or a greater threat than other types of
state-regulated facilities with respect to air
pol I ution, noise pollution or groundwater or surface
wat er pol [ ution.

The third question is whether new or expandi ng
peaker plants should be subject to siting requirenents
beyond applicabl e zoni ng requirements.

The fourth question is if the board determ nes that
peaker plants should be nore strictly regul ated or
restricted, should additional regulations or
restrictions apply to currently permitted facilities or
only to new facilities and expansi ons.

And finally and lastly, the Governor's asked us to
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regul ate or restrict peaker plants.

On each of these questions and in each of these

KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

i ssue areas, the board in the course of five days of
hearing thus far, two days in Chicago and three days in
the suburbs, in the collar counties, have received
excel lent information on each of these questions, and
can assure you that the full board has given its entire
attention to all of the informati on we've received thus
far.

At the conclusion of this process and probably
around the end of the year, the last board neeting in
Decenber, we're expecting to issue a witten
informational order. This order will analyze all of the
information that's been presented in these proceedi ngs
in light of the issue areas outlined by the Governor
Inportantly, the order will set forth the board's
reconmendati ons on whether further state environnenta
regul ation or legislation is necessary to adequately
protect the environnment for the citizens of the state of
II'1inois.

Now, for those of you who have been at our ot her

proceedings, |'msure you're familiar with the order of
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Jackson is here to ensure that the proceedi ngs are done
in an orderly fashion, giving everyone who wants to the

opportunity to speak, ensuring that the court reporter
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gets everything recorded accurately for purposes of the
board's publication of this transcript on the Wb page
and for our purposes when we review all of this
information so that it's adequately transcribed, and
finally, to give us tine-- the board time to ask
what ever questions we think are necessary to ensure that
we have the right information

Hearing Oficer Jackson thus far has done an
excell ent job at naintaining order and keepi ng these
proceedings fair, and | comend her for that, and | now
turn the rest of the proceedings over to her very
capabl e and qualified hands.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you, Chairman
Manni ng. For those of who you have been following this
process, you know that we have already held a nunber of
heari ngs. Those have been held i n downt own Chi cago,
Naperville, Joliet and Grayslake. You also know that we
are mai ntaining much of the information we receive in

this proceeding on the board's Wb site. Al prefiled
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opi ni ons and orders and hearing officer orders are
currently maintained on the board's Wb site. For those
of you who do not know the address of that Wb site,

wWill give it to you now. It is ww.ipcb.state.il.us.
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Hard copi es of any docunent filed with the board in
this matter may al so be obtained fromthe board's
clerk's office, and the board's clerk may be reached at
t el ephone nunber 312-814-3620.

We have approxi mately ten peopl e who have
preregistered to speak today. A list of those persons
is avail able at the table near the entrance to the
room There is also a sign-up sheet on that table for
t hose persons who are interested in addressing the board
ei ther today or tonorrow and who have not al ready
preregistered with ne. Please be aware, however, that
if you do sign up on that sign-in sheet, it may be
tonmorrow before we have tinme to call you for your
conment s.

If you are speaking to the board today, when your
nane is called, I will ask that you pl ease step
forward. W have a witness table here in front. State

your nane clearly for the record and indi cate on whose
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with you any docunents or exhibits that you would |ike
to have entered into this matter. |If you do have
docunents to introduce into the record, you nust be
prepared to | eave at | east one original copy with nyself

so the court reporter can mark it as an exhibit in this
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matter. Any extra copies that you have may be passed
out to the board nenbers today.

Once you have nade your statenent, any of the board
nmenbers or menbers of the board's technical unit nmay ask
you questions pertaining to your statenment. Please do
not infer any preconceived concl usi ons or opinions on
the part of the board by the types or nunber of
guestions they mght ask. Questions are asked solely in
an attenpt to develop a conplete and accurate record for
the board to review during its deliberations in this
matter. The board has nade no conclusions at this tinme,
and it will begin its deliberations only after al
information is submtted and the record is cl osed.

Because the purpose of these inquiry hearings is to
provi de the board with an opportunity to gather
i nformation regarding the environnmental inpact of peaker

pl ants, only board nenbers and nenbers of the board's
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today and tonmorrow. This is an information-gathering
process as opposed to a debate on the pros and cons of
peaker plants. Therefore, no cross-exani nation or
cross-questioning will be permtted.

Having said that, et me assure you that the board

is interested in hearing what you have to say. If any
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statenents are nade today that you feel need to be
expanded upon, clarified or even questioned, we invite
you to do so in one of two ways. Sign up to speak at
either today or tonorrow s hearing, or two, you nay
submt your conments in witten formto the board's
clerk's office. The public conment process is a very
sinple one, and it is explained on the public
information sheet that is at the back of the room and

t hat has been prepared by the board' s public infornation
of ficer.

As you can see, we do have a court reporter present
today. She will be transcribing everything that is
said. It is inperative that when you speak, you speak
slowy and clearly so that the court reporter can take
down everything you have said.

W have requested an expedited transcript of this



17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

proceeding, so the transcript will be available in the
board's office within three to five business days of
this proceeding, and as soon as we receive it, we wll
ensure that it is posted to our Wb site.

One other thing | want to nmention is that we do
have a notice list for this nmatter. Those persons on
the notice list will receive copies of all board

opi nions and orders as well as hearing officer orders.
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There is no obligation for those on the notice list to
serve other persons on the notice list. |If you are on
the notice list and file a docunment with the board, you
need only file the docunent with the clerk's office. |If
you are not on the notice list and would like to be
added, you nust contact the followi ng person: Kim
Schroeder, SCHROEDER Her tel ephone nunber is
area code 217-782-2633, or you can e-mail Kimat
schroedk-- SGCHROE-DK-- @pcb.state.il.us.

If you have any questions at all that are not
covered by ny opening remarks, please feel free to see
Conni e Newran at the back of the room As | nentioned
earlier, she is our public information officer. Connie,
if you want to wave? Thank you. Connie will be nore

than happy to try to answer any questions that you m ght
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| do want to mention also that we have a citizens'
group that is videotaping the proceeding today. If any
of the witnesses do not feel confortable being
vi deot aped, please et nme know and we will turn the
vi deot ape off during your presentation.

Those are the only opening remarks | have right
now. The first w tness schedul ed to speak to us today

is M. Roger Finnell with the Illinois Departnment of

KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY H
Transportation, and I'll ask you to please step forward
and we will begin.
MR FINNELL: Good afternoon.
HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Good aft ernoon.
MR FINNELL: M nane is Roger Finnell,
F-1-NN-E-L-L. I'man engineer with the I DOT D vision

of Aeronautics, Bureau of Airport Engineering, and |'ve
been asked to address the Illinois Pollution Control
Board with a prepared statenment, and then I'I1l follow up
wi th any questions you m ght have on that.

On behalf of the Illinois Department of
Transportation, Division of Aeronautics, we thank the
board for the opportunity to coment on the inpacts that

peaker electrical generating facilities may have upon
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There are several issues associated with electrica
generating facilities that have the potential for
creating an aeronautical safety hazard. The main
avi ati on concerns associ ated with peaker plant
devel opnents are as follows: Physical height of the
structure-- including construction equi prment - -
penetrating critical airspace; enission of visible
di scharge obscuring pilot and/or controller vision

within the airport environnment; electronmagnetic
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interference with aeronautical, navigational and
conmuni cation radio signals; and finally, the exhaust
plunme's vertical velocity and its effect on aircraft
structural integrity and aircraft controllability.

The first three issues have been addressed by the
departnent in our Airport Hazard Zoni ng Rul es.
Presently there are 56 airports which have airport
hazard zoni ng enacted and enforced by the departnent.
These rules effectively limt the height of structures
around individual airports as well as address snoke
em ssions and el ectromagnetic interference. They can be
adopted by the departnment for publicly-owned airports,

but only at the request of the airport sponsor



14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

10

11

12

Al ternatives, publicly-owned airports nmay adopt their
own hazard zoning rules that apply to hazards partially
or totally within the public owner's territorial limts.
| DOT has not been granted authority under Illinois
statutes to enact airport hazard zoning for
privat el y-owned open-to-the-public facilities. The only
protection these airports have fromstructures
encroaching on their airspace is local |and use control
To date, we have not had a peaker plant proposa
violate any airport hazard zoning surface nor create an

adverse el ectromagnetic or visible plune concern.
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However, this does not preclude conflicts with future
proposal s.

A concern to our office is the inpact the vertica
velocity of the plume has on flight safety. The
majority of these plants are a gas turbine-fired-- I'm
sorry-- gas turbine facilities which have relatively
hi gh exhaust velocities and tenperatures. Wile the
exit velocity of the plunme dissipates rapidly upon
| eavi ng the stack, the buoyancy of the plunme due to its
heat still causes a significant vertical velocity
several hundred feet above the point of discharge.

The situation where this is an aeronautical issue
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isif the plant is within the traffic pattern to the
airport. Wile pattern size is dependent on the speed
and nunber of aircraft within the traffic pattern, the
| ateral dinensions of the pattern are usually within a
mle of the airport. |If a generating facility is within
this area, it can result in arriving or departing
aircraft passing only a few hundred feet over the
snokestack of the facility.

W have entered into discussions with Federa
Avi ation Admi nistration and nmanufacturers of genera
aviation aircraft to find out what the effect of flight

i nto an exhaust plume would have on aviation. To
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receive certification fromthe FAA an airfranme nust be
capabl e of withstanding a vertical gust of 30 feet per
second. However, an aircraft in a |landing or takeoff
configuration at typical approach and departure speeds
will Iikely lose I'ift and experience a nonentary stal
if subjected to a vertical gust of 15 feet per second or
nmore. This is certainly an aviation safety concern

W woul d |ike to enphasize that this concern is
only for generating facilities within the inmedi ate
airport environment. Once away fromthe airport,

aircraft are bound by FAA regulations to be at |east 500
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feet above the highest obstacle within a horizonta
di stance of 2,000 feet over sparsely popul ated areas and
1,000 feet above the highest obstacle within a
hori zontal distance of 2,000 feet over congested areas.
Aircraft operating outside the traffic pattern are al so
at higher operating speeds and therefore are not as
prone to stalling should they encounter |arger vertica
gusts of nore than 15 feet per second.

IDOT is currently review ng our rules and
regul ations to deternmine if further action is necessary
to prevent discharges frominterfering with air
navi gati on and conprom sing aviation safety. During

this time, we request that the Illinois Pollution
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Control Board forward to IDOT any notification it
receives of a generating facility being proposed w thin
two miles of a public-use airport for further
evaluation. This will afford us an opportunity to work
with the proponent to mtigate any inpact to aviation

It is signed by Janes V. Bildilli, Chief Engineer
of the Bureau of Airport Engineering of IDOI. And the
original to you?

That being said, some of ny qualifications, to give

you some background with regards to questions |'lI
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respond to, | ama registered professional engineer with
the State of Illinois. |'ve been with the Illinois
Depart ment of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics,
for nearly ten years in their planning section. 1In
addition, I'malso a commercial pilot, licensed by the
FAA in both nmulti-engine and instrunments, and |'malso a
certified flight instructor. That gives you sone
background for the questions you nmay ask.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Thank you. The docunent
that you provided to the court reporter we will mark as
IDOT Exhibit 1, and it will be entered into the record.
Are there any questions at this tine?

CHAI RVAN MANNING | just want to say thank you,

M. Finnell, and thank you to the Departnent of

19
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

Transportation for your participation in these
proceedi ngs. W wel come your expertise on the
particul ar question of aviation safety.

| should nention that the reason that-- for IDOI"s
participation is as a result of an informal request that
the board has nade to the Departnent of Transportation
as a result of issues that were raised on the record by
citizens in terns of aviation concerns, and so we

informal |y requested that the Departnent of
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Transportation provide us its expertise on those
guesti ons.

I have no specific questions nyself, but I'd be
happy to open it up to the board nenbers who mght. M.
Kezelis.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Thank you, M. Finnell. |
do have one question. Wuld you for the record describe
briefly an exanple of a sparsely popul ated area as
opposed to a nore heavily-concentrated area of
popul ati on?

MR FINNELL: Certainly. The FAA's interpretation
of sparsely popul ated basically incorporates all of the
popul ation area within Illinois. A congested area would
be that of a netropolitan area, a village or town with a

relatively high density of people living, places of
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public assenbly. So certainly within nmetropolitan
regions, that would require the 1,000 foot, as well as
flying over any established town.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Ckay. Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: | believe you indicated that
ai rports have the opportunity to request hazard zoni ng.
There are 56 who have?

MR FI NNELL: Yes.
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BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Is that correct? Are there
any who have not?

MR FINNELL: Quick math, there are currently 73
publicly-owned air facilities. O those, only 56 have
requested us to adopt airport hazard zoning on their
behal f.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Have any of those ot her
faciliti es adopted hazard zoning on their own?

MR FINNELL: Yes, they have.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: So nost-- or do all the
ai rports have hazard zoning, either yours or theirs?

MR, FINNELL: There is a requirement as a condition
of accepting federal or state funding that the airport
will protect their approaches. The degree to which that
protection is enforced or enacted varies greatly, if

that is sufficient. Sonme are very stringent as far as

21
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the actual airspace they protect and can be somewhat
limted. Qhers have larger territorial limts and can

afford a greater degree of protection.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: | n your experience, are you
awar e of any circunstances or occurrences where vertica
pl unes have been a hazard to flight patterns--

MR FI NNELL: W have- -
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BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: -- anywhere in the country?

MR FINNELL: In the country, no. In the state of
IIlinois, certainly no, okay? | wll qualify that by
saying | have not researched that fully throughout the
United States. There has not been an enforcenent action
within the state of Illinois to nmy know edge.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: M. Finnell, could you
pl ease speak into the m crophone?

MR FINNELL: |'msorry.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  They' re having troubl e
hearing you in the back of the room Thank you.

MR FINNELL: Wuld you like me to nove this over,

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Does that answer that you
just gave reflect all types of stacks, or are you
referring specifically to peaker stacks?

MR FINNELL: We're referring to all types of

22
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di schar ges.
BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Okay. Thank you.
MR FINNELL: 1It's not singled out to peakers, no.
HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Are there any ot her
questions? Al right. Thank you very much, M.

Finnell. W appreciate you being here.
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MR FINNELL: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Next on our |ist of
speakers is M. John Smith with the Gty of Decatur. |
bel i eve you indicated that Brent Gegory is also
speaking with you?

MR SMTH  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Wul d you like for himto
cone up at this tine as well?

MR GREGORY: You can go ahead

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Al right. And speak
into the m crophone, please.

MR SMTH  Sure.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you.

MR SMTH  Good afternoon. My nanme is John Smith
and | represent the Illinois Section of Anerican
Wat erwor ks Association. |SAWM is the state section of
t he Anerican Waterworks Association. Menbership

includes water utilities, operators and professionals
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t hroughout the state. And | appreciate the opportunity
to speak before the board on the issue of peaker plants
and on the use of water resources.

Nurmber one: Do peaker plants need to be regul ated

nore strictly than Illinois' current air quality
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statutes and regul ati ons provide? | SAWM does not feel
t hat peaker plants shoul d be singled out and regul at ed
nore strictly than any other power plant types in
IIlinois with regard to air quality statutes. Adequate
generation of electric power is inportant to the future
econom c growh of IIlinois.

Nurmber two: Do peaker plants pose a unique threat
or a greater threat than other types of state-regul ated
facilities with respect to air pollution, noise
pol l ution or groundwater or surface water pollution?
| SAWM bel i eves that peaker plants pose no greater
pol lution than any other type of industry and that
exi sting regulations are adequate for protection.

Nunber three: Should new or expandi ng peaker
pl ants be subject to siting requirenents beyond
applicabl e local zoning requirenents? | SAWM believes
t hat peaker plant siting requirenents shoul d encourage
the siting of these plants near a sanitary water

treatment plant, if practical, so as to utilize the
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di scharge fromthe sanitary water treatnment plant known
as gray water or cooling water.
Nurmber four: |f the board determ nes that peaker

pl ants should be nore strictly regulated or restricted,
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shoul d additional regulations or restrictions apply to
currently permitted facilities or only to new facilities
and expansi ons? W only wi sh to conment on the use of
wat er resources by these facilities. Nunmber one, the
State of Illinois nmust nmanage, protect and enhance the
devel opnent of the water resources of the state as a
natural and public resource. Nunber two, water
resources have an essential and pervasive role in the
soci al and econonic well-being of the people of Illinois
and is of vital inportance to the general health, safety
and economic welfare. Nunber three, water resources of
the state nmust be used for beneficial and legitimate
purposes. And nunber four, waste and degradati on of
wat er resources nust be prevented.

| SAWM is not opposed to the use of water resources
by peaker plants. W are only asking for the
responsi bl e use of water resources by these facilities
and all major new water consuners. W believe the
regul ation or permtting of |arge water resource

wi t hdrawal s shoul d be the responsibility of regiona
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agenci es, such as mnunicipalities, counties or water
boards, and that a state agency shoul d have oversi ght of

t hese regi onal agenci es.
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W believe that the basis for the decision on how
much water can be safely used froma desi gnated water
resource be based on the existing know edge and
scientific studies of that resource, and, if know edge
of that resource is lacking, then additional research
i nto the adequacy of this source should be done before
allowing major withdrawals. The decision to allow the
devel opnent of existing or new water resources nust be
based on sound science, not politics. W believe that
fundi ng must be adequate for the state agency to perform
t hese studies.

In conclusion, Illinois Section AWM is not opposed
to peaker facilities. W are calling for the rules and
regul ati ons of water resources be based on scientific
studi es of our val uable water resources and that an
unbi ased state agency be charged with oversight of
regi onal water use. Adequate funding for the state
agency nust allow for the scientific study of our state
wat er resources, and the State nust have a plan for the
ef fici ent managenent of water resources. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you, M. Smith.
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MR SM TH  Questions?

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Any questions?
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CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Thank you for being here today.
| do have just one question. Are you aware of any
projects right now that are ongoi ng between a peaker
pl ant devel oper and a sanitary treatnent facility in the
state we coul d speak to?

MR SMTH |I'mnot aware of any.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Anything else for M.
Smith?

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: | have a question.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Ckay.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: So what you're advocating is
that we have a state water resources board that
al l ocates these large withdrawal s? 1Is that what you're
sayi ng?

MR SMTH  What we are saying is that we believe a
state agency such as the Illinois State Water Survey
shoul d have sone oversi ght over the regi onal agencies
that normally woul d have sone control over water. W
beli eve that in nost cases, the regional agency has at
| east some know edge of the water resource and how nuch

of that resource can be used safely w thout inpacting
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ot her consuners or their industries. However, if the
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| ocal agency has-- unreasonably tries to restrict the
use of these water resources, then a state agency coul d
have oversight of the |ocal agency.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: Are you famliar with any
other eastern states that m ght have a setup that you
woul d consi der a nodel for these kinds of decisions?

MR SMTH No. 1've not researched that.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD:  Thank you.

MR SMTH W would be glad to ook into that.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG Coul d you explain a little bit
about your association for us?

MR SMTH Yes. 1llinois Section of Anmerican
Wat erwor ks Associ ati on represents nost of the both
public and private water utilities throughout the state
of Illinois fromthe very small ones to the very |arge
ones, and we represent the operators of these plants; we
represent water resource people, such as | ake managers.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG Thank you. Anybody el se?

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: |s your association invol ved
at all with any studies of water resources, be they
groundwat er or surface water, and their adequacy or even
just their quantity?

MR SMTH Yes, we are. I|llinois Section of AWM
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is involved with the Mahonmet Aquifer Consortium which
has-- is trying to secure federal funding to do further
studi es of the Mahonet aquifer located in the centra
part of Illinois. This consortiumand the action that
we are doing to try to study this reservoir has already
generated interest fromother states in that they have
i nqui red how we have put together the consortium and how
we are going about to try and initiate these studies.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Does that consortium cross
state lines? | mean, are there participants from
I ndi ana, for exanple?

MR SMTH No, it does not cross state |ines,
al t hough there are sonme of the water people right across
the state line in Indiana that are aware of the
consortium and of the study.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA:  Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you, M. Smith.
Brent Gregory with the Illinois-American Water Conpany.

MR GREGORY: Cood afternoon.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Afternoon.

MR GREGORY: M nane is Brent Gregory, and while
work for Illinois-Anrerican Water Conpany, |'m here today
representing the National Association of Water

Conpanies, Illinois Chapter, and | appreciate the
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opportunity to address the board, specifically on the

i ssue of peaker plants and also in a nore general sense,
sone of the related environnental and water resource
issues. | do have a prepared statenent.

My nane is Brent Gregory, and |'m here today
representing the Illinois Chapter of the Nationa
Associ ation of Water Conpanies, or NAWC

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Just sl ow down just a
little bit for the court reporter.

MR GREGORY: Certainly.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you.

MR GREGORY: | told nmyself to do that ahead of
time.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: It's hard to do when
you' re readi ng.

CHAI RVAN MANNING  It's hard

MR GREGORY: NAWC is the principal trade
organi zation that represents the private and

i nvestor-owned water utility industry. NAWC nenber

utilities serve over 1 nmillion people in Illinois and 22
mllion people nationwide. | appreciate the opportunity
to address the Illinois Pollution Control Board today on

the issues of peaker plants and water resource

managenment in |llinois.
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The ability to provide water of sufficient quality
and quantity to sustain commercial, industrial and
residential growth goes hand-in-hand with the
availability of electrical power. Water suppliers rely
on adequate available electricity, and generating plants
rely on an adequate supply of water. NAWC supports the
devel opnent of new el ectrical generating capacity as
needed for the econonm ¢ advancenent of Illinois.

We do not believe that peaker plants pose a unique
threat to the environnent conpared to other types of
state-regulated facilities. W believe that existing
environnental regul ations are adequate to address air
and water quality concerns from peaker plants. As mnuch
of the water used by peaker plants is discharged to the
environnent, it is inportant that current discharge
regul ati ons be consistently applied in order to protect
the quality of our groundwater and surface water
resour ces.

NAWC agrees that it is in the best interests of al
to have sound | egislative and regul atory oversi ght of
the state's water resources. The prinmary managenent of
the water resources should be provided by an assenbl age
of local and regional stakeholders with the State having

final oversight.
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W enphasi ze the need for water use decisions to be
based on sound scientific assessnment of |ocal and
regi onal water resources. Were existing know edge is
insufficient, the state techni cal agencies should
provide the scientific studies needed to pernit or deny
water withdrawals. State funding nust be adequate to
support these efforts. The right of existing public
wat er supplies to condition withdrawing at their current
installed capacities should be grandfathered into any
programthat is devel oped. The State shoul d consi der
conpetent third-party assessnents presented by those
seeking to utilize the water resource

W believe that permitting of new peaker plants and
siting requirenents shoul d encourage conservation
nmeasures such as recycling of cooling water and use of
ot her discharges for cooling when possible, such as
those fromsanitary treatnent plants.

In summary, NAWC believes that the ability to
expand power and water resources is inportant to the
economic growmh of Illinois. Peaker plants, as al
state-regulated facilities, should be subject to the
consi stent application of existing laws to ensure
protection of our environment and natural resources.

There is a need for nore conprehensive oversi ght of
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Il1linois'" water resources. Such oversight appropriately
resides with the State but nust be based on sound and
current science and not on politics. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you, M. Gegory.
Are there any questions? Go ahead.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: M. Gregory, earlier in your
statenment you nentioned you thought that there was
adequate control as far as water quality, and tw ce
heard the words water quality. Do you have any conmments
about the quantity of the-- or the adequacy of
particul arly groundwater supplies? Those concerns have
been raised in--

MR GREGORY:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: -- previous testinony, and
that's why | would |ike to know what your take on that
is.

MR GREGORY: Well, we recognize that in certain
areas of the state in particular, there may be sone
quantity concerns. W're traditionally known as a
water-rich state, and yet due to concentrations of
i ndustry and popul ati ons and ot her circunstances, there
are areas where, particularly in |ong-termoutl ook
water quantity is a concern. That's why we concur that

there is a need for sound conprehensi ve nanagenent of
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the state's water resources with regard to quantity.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN. Wait. | have a question. |
was just waiting. You nentioned you thought that the
quantity-- | believe it was the assessnent of it should
be done by an i ndependent third party? Could you
explain that a little bit nore?

MR GREGORY: Yes, | can. |If there is sone
| egislative or regulatory control set up over the use of
IIlinois water resources, it needs to be based on sound
scientific assessment of the resource, which we believe
that the State has-- is the appropriate-- has the
appropriate technical resources to conduct those.
However, if there would arise a dispute over the use or
the application for the use of water or w thdrawal of
water and there is better science to be presented by a
petitioner for the use of that water, that should be
al | oned.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: W are tal king about j ust
quantification, not quality?

MR GREGORY: That is really in the context of
guantity.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Ckay.
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BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA: | just want to nmake sure
t hat - -

MR GREGORY: |f sonebody wants to withdraw water
froman aquifer or froma watershed and is able to hire
a qualified consultant to denonstrate the reasonabl eness
of that petition, then that should be consi dered.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Any nore questions for
M. Gregory? No? Al right. Thank you, sir.

MR GREGORY: (kay. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Next we have Ashl ey

Collins with Gtizen Action Illinois. 1s Ms. Collins
here?

MS. ZINGE: | think she thinks she's testifying
t onor r ow.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON. |'msorry?

MS. ZINGLE: | think she thinks she's testifying
t onor r ow.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: (Ckay. Janes Monk,
IIlinois Energy Association. Gve ne a second and |'1I1
pass this around.

MR MONK:  Sure.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Wil e those are being

passed out, I'Il just indicate that |I've been handed a

35
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

docunment entitled "Testinony of Janes R Monk," and we
will mark that as Monk Exhibit 1, and al so a handout
entitled "System Peak-Load and Capacity," sone
historical data, and that will be Mink Exhibit 2. Thank
you. Wenever you're ready.

MR MONK: Thank you, Hearing O ficer Jackson
Chai rman Manni ng and nenbers of the board. M/ nanme is
Janmes R Monk. [|'mthe president of the Illinois Energy
Association. The Illinois Energy Association is a trade
associ ation representing investor-owned electricity and
conbi nation electricity and natural gas conpanies
serving custoners in the state of Illinois. The
associ ation was forned in 1994 and has ei ght nenber
conpani es. Those are listed in ny fornmal testinony, but
they include what you would normally, | think, termas
the incunbent electric utilities in the state of
[1linois, Commonweal th Edison, Illinois Power, CILCO
CIPS, etc. The Energy Association serves as a
spokesperson for the investor-owned electricity and
conbi nati on natural gas and electricity industries here

and as a vehicle to devel op policy positions and
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On behal f of the association, | want to express ny

appreciation to the board for providing the opportunity
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to testify as part of this inquiry into peaker plants.
Qur nenber conpanies are active in both the power supply
and the power transm ssion and distribution sectors of
the industry, and we believe peaker plants play a
critical role in both of those areas, and we stand ready
as an industry to provide whatever infornmation the board
deens necessary to assist you in your inquiry.

To that end, I'd like to respond to a request |
think that was nmade by the board and its staff at the
initial hearings in Chicago regarding current generating
capacity and expected demand growh for electricity here
inlllinois, and |I've attached Exhibit A-- which is a
docunent | think that's been distributed to you-- to ny
testinmony that shows both historical and projected
syst em peak-1 oad capacity-- |oad and capacity for the
Commonweal t h Edi son system Hopefully this will give
the board a flavor of-- for where we are as a state in
both of these respects.

These figures indicate a rather dranmatic increase

in peak-load in recent years. Wile peak-1oads on the
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ConEd system have grown at 2.8 percent over the last 15
years from 1984 to 1999, we note that the growh rate
has nearly doubled in the last five years. From 1994

t hrough 1999, peak-1oads have grown at 4.2 percent.
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Clearly, nmeeting demand was very tight in 1999, and

t hi nk nost of you renmenber the summer of 1999.

Virtually no extra reserves remai ned to cover

contingencies at tine of peak demand. New i ndependent

power capacity was critical to neeting that demand.
Simlarly, while this past summer was cool er than

normal, it was still necessary to have new | PP capacity

in order to provide adequate reserves. For your

i nformation, about 1500 negawatts of reserve capacity is

needed to provide what we call reliability insurance on

the ContEd system for forced plant outages and additiona

deratings at peak. |If the sumer of 2000 weat her had

been normal rather than cooler than nornal, tota

capacity woul d not have provided targeted reliability

reserves or that reliability insurance that | spoke of.
The di agram al so shows projected grow h through the

year 2003. These figures are based on average

peak- maki ng weat her; not cooler than nornmal, not hotter

than normal, but our historical average. In this
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respect, the existing total capacity is inadequate goi ng
forward, even with average peak-naki ng weather. Forced
out age reserves are bel ow target begi nning in 2001
Demand exceeds supply in 2002 considering hi gher recent

demand grow h rates. Even if you look at the relatively
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| ower historical demand growh rates for the 15-year
peri od, demand still exceeds supply in 2003. And
renenber, these projections are for nornmal summer

weat her. Extrenely hot weat her could add an additiona
2 to 3 thousand negawatts of demand next sunmer.

The bottomline here is that even under the best of
circunmst ances, additional capacity is critically
necessary in order to keep the systemfunctioning at
peak tines. 1In the short term that additional capacity
wi Il come al nost exclusively from peaker plants.

| realize that the focus of the board' s inquiry is
on the environnental aspects of these plants, and
certainly do not wish to dimnish those concerns. In
fact, I'"'mof the opinion that the record in this inquiry
shows t hat peaker plants are the best power supply
option froman environnental standpoint as well as an
econom ¢ standpoint. However, peaker plants nust al so

be viewed in the larger context of the role they play in
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maki ng sure that our state has adequate, reliable and
af fordabl e electricity throughout the year.

One need only look at the situation in California
to see the disastrous results of a shortsighted power
supply policy. Wile nmuch of the blane for highly

publicized failure of the electricity market in
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California can be laid at the feet of those who desi gned
the faulty nmarketplace mechanism it is also undoubtedly
true that |lack of adequate power supply is at the heart
of the problemin that state. California has all owed
only limted investnents in new power plants in the |ast
20 years. Between 1996 and 1999, California added only
2 percent to its generating capacity. Several state
pol i ci es di scouraged new construction at a tinme when
demand continued to surge

In that sane tinme period between 1996 and 1999,
California s grow ng econony caused a peak demand
i ncrease of over 5500 nmegawatts. California' s demand is
expected to grow faster than new power plants can be
built for the next several years, even with sone recent
nodi fications to their siting procedure which shoul d
nake it easier to build power plants. Mch of that

demand growth in California is caused by the boom ng
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digital econony in that state that gobbles up
electricity at a nuch higher rate than traditiona

i ndustries have in the past. bviously, here in
I[Ilinois and in the Mdwest, we hope to be part of that
digital econony as well, and we have to deal with the

i npact of that digital econony in the power supply sense

as wel | .
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I'd also like to conment on the issue that | think
was raised in Chicago and naybe at the suburban hearings
of whether much of the electricity generated by peaker
pl ants constructed here in Illinois will be exported to
other states. | think the information that |'ve
provided in ny testinony indicates that there's a need
for power here in Illinois. On top of that fact,
geographi ¢ and transni ssion constraints in our region
are such that it's very difficult to transmt |arge
anounts of electricity on an export basis. Strangely
enough, |'ve talked to ny counterparts in both Wsconsin
and | ndiana, and that sanme export of power argunent has
been used in both of those states by opponents of peaker
pl ants who say they're building power plants in
Wsconsin to ship power to Illinois or they' re building

themin Indiana to ship power to Illinois. Just the
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basic facts of electricity and the physics of
electricity are-- nmake that difficult, especially
considering the transm ssion constraints we have in the
regi on.

The board has received testinmony from nmany sources
that are involved in the generating side of the
i ndustry, including some of ny own nenber conpani es.

However, there's also a distribution conponent, and al
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of nmy nmenber conpanies are part of that side of the
busi ness, the distribution utilities. Even under our
state's landmark deregul ation law, distribution
conpanies nmaintain a duty to provide safe, adequate,
reliable and affordable electricity to our retai
custoners. W are also still the, quote, providers of
| ast resort that we have al ways been to our native | oad
custonmers. In order to fulfill those duties,
di stribution conpani es nmust have an adequate supply of
electricity even at peak tines. That is why, even for
electricity distribution conpanies, nmuch is at stake in
t he debate over construction of peaker plants here in
Illinois.

Thank you for the opportunity to present testinony

in this proceeding. The nenber conpani es of the
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I1linois Energy Association are pleased to be a part of
this process and stand ready to assist the board as your
inquiry goes forward, and |'d be pleased to try to
answer any questions that you m ght have, although I
will tell you I'"'mnot a technical expert. [|'ma-- |'m
what they call a policy guy. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you, M. Monk.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: M. Monk, in nentioning

earlier in your statenment the booni ng shortage, the
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shortfall, you said that demand will have to cone from
peaker pl ants.

MR MXNK: In the short-term | think peaker plants
is where that's nost exclusively going to come from

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: 1've heard a | ot of testinony
in the last nonth or two. The electricity which is
generated by the peaker plants is the nost expensive
type of electricity; is that correct?

MR MONK: | think that's a little overbroad. It
depends on a lot of factors, given the market situation
at the time that the peaker plants are operated or not
operated. It's a little too broad, | think, to say that
it's the nost expensive power.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS:. We've heard that statenent
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made at previ ous neetings.

MR MONK: Right.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: That's why | asked. Wereas
the power that's generated through a so-called
base-1 oad, whether it's coal or nuclear, is much
cheaper.

MR MONK: 1'd say on the whole, that's probably
true.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Wbuld not the construction of

anot her one or two maj or base-load plants obviate the
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problem in your opinion?

MR MONK:  Well, | think if you were able to
construct base-load power plants, certainly that woul d
obvi ate sonme of the problens. The difficulty with the
base-load power plant is the tine frame that you're
tal king about in terns of the design, construction
operation, is nmuch longer than we can afford to
undertake here in Il1linois.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Are any of your nenbers at the
present time contenplating any new base-load plants that
you know of ?

MR MONK:  Not - -

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Anywhere within the state of
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MR MONK: Not that I'maware of. There nmay be
i nternal planning processes that are underway that |'m
not aware of, but |'mnot aware of any at the present
time.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: That's all. Thank you.

MR MONK: O course | would add that part of
what's going on in the industry is a-- what we call an
unbundling of the industry, and, you know, you will have
di stribution conpanies-- all of ny nenbers are

di stribution conpanies, and dependi ng on how this al
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devel ops over the next few years, the distribution
conpani es for the nost part won't be owni ng generation
inthe first place. That will cone fromgeneration
conpani es, some of who may be part of an overall conpany
that the distribution conpany is, many of whomwi ||l not
be related to a distribution conpany what soever.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: | have one question, M.
Monk. The chart that you've given us--

MR MON\K: Yes.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: -- and | understand you're a

policy person as opposed to perhaps a predictor or an
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anal yzer of figures-- but the chart you've given us
notes a significant drop in 1992 for peak-|oad denand.
Was 1992 an anonmaly? Was it an usually cold year, or do
you know?

MR MONK: | don't know, but that would be ny
guess, because if you can | ook and conpare 1999 to 2000,
you see a simlar drop, and | do know that those two--

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: That was weat her-rel at ed.

MR MONK: That was weather-related, and | would
guess the ot her one was weat her-rel at ed.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Ckay. Thank you.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG | have a nore general question
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on the graph itself, and that kind of relates to the
question of the applicability of the graph. Wen you
| ook at the total capacity, you' ve got ConEd' s capacity
and installed IPP capacity. What do you nean by
installed IPP? Maybe | missed that in your remarks, but
what are you referring to when you say-- when the graph
refers to the installed | PP capacity?
MR MONK: That would be-- For the npbst part, that
woul d be peaker plants that are already up and runni ng.
CHAl RVAN MANNI NG Ckay. So that if you | ook at

the gray shaded area on the graph itself, that's the
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total capacity of energy currently being generated for
what mar ket ?

MR MXNK: This is for the Conkd system

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Ckay.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: There are two shades of

gray.
MR MONK: Right.
BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: They're difficult to
di stingui sh.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Right. The shaded gray wi t hout
the black Iine and the gray-- the shaded gray with the
bl ack |i ne.

MR MONK: Right, and then the dotted |ine above
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that is the projection that shows that even with that,
we need nore power.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Does the I PP stand for
i ndependent power producers?

MR MONK: Yes, it does.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA:  Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: The dropoff between 1997 and
1998 refl ects what change in the systen?

MR MONK: Are you tal king about the dropoff in

t he- -
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BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: The installed capacity. 1997
shows the 22,000 negawatts and then ' 98- -

MR MNK: | would-- | don't know for sure, but ny
guess is that would reflect-- at least in one respect,
that would reflect the retirenent of the Zion plant.
There may be other factors, but | think that woul d
probably be a large factor involved in that.

CHAIl RMAN MANNI NG M. Monk, in our proceedings too
we' ve heard various definitions of the word peaker plant
itself. | would assunme your association has a
definition they would use for peaker plant. Do you want
to give us what that would be?

MR MNK: M definition would be an econonic

definition, and that is power that is primarily for use
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at peak demand tines, and, you know, that--
CHAl RVAN MANNI NG However it's generated?
MR MONK:  Well, | mean, I-- yeah. | think, you

know, if you're talking about a plant that is dedicated
primarily to that purpose, then | would call that a
peaker plant. Now, there-- you know, that nay be an
older plant that is only used at peak tinme, and there
are those around, but | think, you know, in the general

context of your inquiry, we're talking nostly about the
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new natural gas turbine-fired facilities.

CHAI RMAN MANNI NG Ri ght ..

MR RAO Just as a followup to Chairman Manning's
guestion, when you say, you know, a peaker plant is a
pl ant that serves you in peak demand, can peak demand
be, Iike, the whole sumer season, |ike a-- you know, if
there's conbi ned-cycle plant that operates just during
the sunmer, would that be considered a peaker plant?

MR MONK:  Well, I'mtreading on pretty thin ice
here, but peak demand is actually a figure that's
reached once per season, | guess, but what | would cal
t he peak season woul d be the summer. Qur systens, as
are other systens around the country, the base-Ioad
demand is built to nmeet a regular demand, and then the

peak is on top of that.
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Now, you m ght have a run of-- period of two weeks
whi ch coul d be considered a peak period because every
day is 100 degrees and every day the same huge anount of
electricity is being demanded, but at sone point in
time, a fewdays or a while later, it's going to go back
to a normal demand scenario, so, | nean, that's kind of
the difference. Peak is what it inplies, and that is

t he hi ghest point of demand for a particular day or a
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particul ar few days together. It is-- It's-- | don't
know t hat we've ever had a peak that |asted an entire
sunmer season or even nore than a coupl e weeks.

MR RAO So you say it's nore based on days rather
than nonths or weeks.

MR MONK: Yeah. Well, yes. | nean, in terns of--
it depends again, as | answered the gentleman's question
a nonent ago, on the market conditions, but, you know,
peaker plants will run for certain periods of times when
it's econonmic to run them and then when it's probably a
nonpeak period, they won't because it's not econonmic to
run them

MR RAO | had a question on the chart that you
subm tted, and, you know, you show growth rates for
those dotted lines. The growh rate, those lines, do

they represent base-load, or is it the peak-1oad growh
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rate that you're projecting?

MR MONK: That's peak, and the reason there are
two there is to show you that historically we had one
particular growh rate and we've accel erated that growh
rate rather dramatically in the [ ast few years.

MR RAO kay. And one last question | have is

about the required reserves that you show in the chart.
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VWhat percent of the base-load does required reserves
represent; do you know?

MR MNK: | don't know in this particular figure
I think if you go back to M. Bulley's testinony from
MAIN, their standard is 15 percent reserve.

MR RAO That's what | just wanted to nake sure,
you know, that this percent is what M. Bulley was
tal ki ng about .

MR MONK:  And-- So, | nean, that's the-- | think
that's-- the industry standard is the 15 percent reserve
nmar gi n.

MR RAO Al right. Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAVWA:  So when it said on your chart
requi red reserves, is that what you nean? What do you
nmean by required?

MR MONK: There's sonme-- | would hesitate to say

with 100 percent accuracy that we're tal king about that
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15 percent nmargin here, because the testinony-- the
figures that were supplied from Commonweal th Edi son
tal ked about the-- let's see what-- | want to get the
exact phrase-- the reliability insurance, which |I'd have
to check to make sure that we're tal king about the true

15 percent systemreserve as opposed to that reliability
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i nsurance reserve that they're tal king about. M/ guess
is we're tal king about the 15 percent, but | can check
that and be sure on it. | wouldn't want to give you an
i naccurate answer.

MR RAO If you could answer that in your
coments, it would be hel pful

MR MONK: Sure. 1'd be glad to

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Anyt hi ng el se?

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: | had a question. You
mentioned that it's hard to export energy from
IIlinois. Could you expand on that?

MR MONK:  Well, for instance, the State of
Wsconsin has-- is undertaking a programright now to
increase its transm ssion capacity, because they have
very serious transm ssion constraints caused by two main
factors; geographic, the fact that this little | ake kind
of gets in the way of transmtting electricity around,

and then they al so have a shortage-- frankly, a shortage
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of transm ssion capacity, just the physical capacity to
transmt. W have other constraints that are related to
the-- to our geography as well as the transm ssion
capacity.

Transm ssion capacity, frankly, is another area
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that has not kept up with the growth of the market in
terns of especially wholesale electricity transfers.
We-- You know, it-- | think it's no secret to anybody
here that it's very difficult to site and build a
transm ssion |line, and we have not been able to keep up
with that demand that's taken place in the |ast few
years, with the growth that's taken place in the |ast
few years of the whol esale electricity market.

You hear people who tal k about deregul ation tel
you that we're starting into, at |least on the whol esal e
basis, power transfers fromone state to another, etc.
W're starting into a whol esal e bul k power market, but
our systemis really a Bal kani zed systemthat was built
for the old electricity style of control area here,
control area here, control area here, and that we do
need to nmake-- one of the things that the industry is
| ooki ng at and the governnent is |ooking at very
seriously is how are we going to upgrade and noderni ze

our transm ssion systemin order to nake the whol esal e
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bul k power market work? It wasn't built for all the
transfers that are taking place now between utilities in
Pennsyl vania and utilities in Wom ng.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: Do we have probl ens
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internally in Illinois?

MR MONK: No, not internally. | think our system

internally is a sound system and |'m not sayi ng we have
problenms in terns of getting power when we need it.
It's just that the transm ssion systemthat's there now
does have constraints, and it needs to be nodernized in
order to be up to speed for the new industry that we're
headed into, and it's very difficult to do, frankly, for
sorme of the sane reasons that building peaker plants is
very difficult to do

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: W heard in another hearing
that the transm ssion systemup by Zion of course is
underused with the closing of Zion. Wth that freed-up
transm ssion line, does that nake it nore difficult or
easier to nove power around in Illinois?

MR MONK: That-- | couldn't answer that except to
say that electricity unfortunately doesn't pay too nuch
attention to the laws of man. There-- It's kind of into
the aws of physics. And | don't know that sinply

freeing up a transmssion line in and around Zi on would
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help a situation even as close as the western suburbs.
I"mnot that technically expert enough to give you an

answer on that.
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BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN. On a different topic, you
tal ked about California.

MR MONK:  Popul ar topic these days.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: It is, it is, and | would
certainly like to learn nore about it. You mentioned
that between '96 and '99 they only added 2 percent to
their capacity. | would assune their base-load capacity
or just their capacity in general?

MR MONK: Their capacity in general. | don't know
the breakdown. | don't think-- It would probably be a
peaki ng type of capacity, because | don't think they've
built a base-load plant there in a long, long tine.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA: (kay. And then you |l ater
nmentioned that they had a demand or an increase of 5500
megawat t s?

MR MONK: In that sanme period of tine

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: I n that same period? Wat
ki nd of percentage? | nean, how would | conpare those
two figures?

MR MONK: | have-- Let me |ook just a second.

believe their total system capacity is something |ike
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60, 000 negawatts, so whatever 5 percent of-- whatever

5,000 negawatts out of 60 would be was what it increased
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in that period of tine.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: | don't know if you can help
me with this or not, but we do hear a | ot and-- about
California and are we conparable or simlar problens and
that type of thing. Do you know of any resource that
descri bes what California has suffered through nost
recently as far as its nmarketing and its capacity and
all that?

MR MONK:  Well, there are several trade
publications and industry newsletters and things that
follow that situation very closely. | have a file about
that thick on it that | can give you sone infornmation.
You know, I-- if you don't mind, | can give you ny
per sonal opi ni on.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  That woul d be great.

MR MONK: There are two problens with California
that we-- nunber one, the first problem we avoid it
here in Illinois, and that is they designed a system
that was doonmed fromthe start, in ny opinion. They
didn't really deregulate their system They just
shifted regul ati on around. They set up a situation

where their utilities could only buy power froma
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st at e- nandat ed, st ate-operated power exchange. There's
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no-- There really isn't an open market for power per se
inthe California systemthat was designed. It really,
you know, shifted things around, but it didn't really
create a conpetitive marketplace, and that's one of the
nmaj or probl ens.

The other major problemis what | touched on in ny
testinmony, and that is they have-- they had before they
even started their process of deregulating a trenendous
supply problem They were inporting a | ot of power from
out of state at that point, and they haven't added any
power to speak of since then. Their denmands are grow ng
exponentially, and what really happened on the power
supply side this tinme was they couldn't get out-of-state
power suppliers to sell power into California at the
artificially low prices that the government was setting,
so that's a big part of their supply problem And so
those two things kind of cane together, and
unfortunately the people in San Diego were the first
ones to feel the effect of that.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Thank you. That does help a
| ot.

MR MONK:  Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Anyt hing el se?
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CHAIl RVAN MANNI NG Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Thank you very nuch

MR MONK:  Thank you very much.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: At this point, before we
call our next speakers forward, why don't we take a
short ten-minute break, and we'll cone back in ten
m nutes, then.

(Brief recess taken.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Ckay. W'll go back on
the record now One point of clarification. M.
Gegory left an exhibit with the court reporter that
was not aware of, so we've now marked that as Gregory
Exhibit 1, and it has been admitted into the record in
this matter. Qur next speaker, | believe, M. Silva?

MR SILVA:  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Ckay. \Wenever you're
ready.

MR SILVA: Thank you. M/ name is Patricio Silva.
| amthe Mdwest Activities Coordinator for the Natura
Resources Defense Council. The Natural Resources
Def ense Council is a nmenbership organi zati on of 400, 000
menbers nationw de originally organized in 1970, and
we' ve been working on clear air and clean water issues

and nost recently electric restructuring heavily in both
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California and in New York, and |I'mhere today in part
to convey the experience of our offices in the New York
and California exanples to offer what | essons they may
have to hold for Illinois.

First, I just wanted to kind of step back and point
out a couple of general trends that we've noticed of
interest to us vis-a-vis what's occurring in California
and in the eastern United States in terns of the siting
and construction of gas turbines. Particularly,
starting in New Engl and, about four to five years ago
there was a massive influx of new capacity being
proposed, approximately 25,000 negawatts. Eventually,
only about 9,000 negawatts of that capacity was actually
permtted and came to construction. Many of the units
were-- snaller nerchant devel opers sold them There was
regul ar consolidation in the I PP industry during that
time, so it was actually kind of hard to keep track of.

But in the end, today we have a | arge nunber of
units that are all conbined-cycle units. Many of them
are load-following, a few are base-load units, but
clearly, the overwhelmng majority are not peaking
single-cycle units. Part of the reason was the
attraction for mainly the host conmunities was i n having

units that had a clear value, and in terns of benefits
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to the comunity and the state, there was a definite
need and recognition of need for additional capacity,
but al so, given the status of the severe non-attai nnent
area and serious non-attainment areas, a classification
for many of the |ocations where these units went in,
there was a strong argunent, and successfully, many of
themwere permitted with fairly stringent air and al so
cool ing water requirenents.

A nunber of the units rely on dry cooling with | ow,
if any, water withdrawals. Many of themrely on
cl osed-1 oop systens that have a one-tine wthdrawal of
water, and the permt restrictions are unusually
restricting in that many of themare solely natura
gas-fired. They have no option of fire oil.

Now, that trend is being repeated across the United
States, and the Energy Informati on Adm ni strati on now
forecasts that by 2020 there will be a need for
approxi mately 300 gi gawatts, otherw se known as 300, 000
nmegawatts, of new capacity across the United States.
Now, approximately 100,000 negawatts i s supposed to
arrive by 2010, so what we're actually seeing is a
run-up to what should be a very hectic period in the--
across the United States as a | arge nunber of units wll

be sited and permitted and built across the country to
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serve different reliability regions and isolated | oca
pocket s.

One of the concerns that we have is that some of
the I ocations that are being selected now early in the
process may not be ideal and nmay actually frustrate the
siting of new, nore advanced units later in this
construction cycle. W as an organization are in favor
of replacing and backing out ol der fossil fue
fired-units, particularly coal-fired units, so we have
fought and continued to advocate in both federal and
state regulatory and in legislative foruns for
conpr ehensi ve | egislation that would essentially cal
for the repowering of coal-fired units and repl ace them
Wi th conbi nati ons of nore natural gas-fired units,
greater reliance on renewabl e resources, and also a
greater investnent in energy efficiency.

This actually has two different goals. One is the
short-termbenefit that it can actually essentially
shave of f enough of the denmand to avoid sone of the peak
demand epi sodes that we've suffered both here in Chicago
in 1999 and al so across northern California this sunmer
and in isolated pockets el sewhere across the eastern
seaboard

In ternms of the questions put to the Illinois
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Pol l ution Control Board by Governor Ryan, we do not feel
that per se individual single-cycle units require nore
rigorous analysis than they currently have. Now,
that's-- there are a couple of caveats |I'd Iike to nake
with that statement. W believe that it was a m stake
for EPA to issue the 182(f) NOx wai ver for the Lake

M chigan area. W think that the results of that

deci si on have been counterproductive and will continue
to be so.

W' re al so concerned that that waiver is actually
di scouraging the siting of the nost and cl eanest
categories of generation in the region in favor of |ess
efficient units which will have a longer |ease on life
than they otherw se would had the full garmut of Title |
requi renents under the Clean Air Act been in effect in
this region.

In the area of-- And one of the areas that we're
al so concerned with is also water withdrawals for the
single-cycle units. W note that there are in many
parts of the state and al so across the Great Lakes
regi on units being suggested that would require
significant withdrawals on limted aquifers, and that
al so may jeopardize the ability of future units to cone

inat atime when additional demand is required.
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So one of the things that we have sought in severa
states, particularly in California and New York-- and
I"d like to go into the California experience in-- at
some detail in a few mnutes-- that a nore conprehensive
assessnent of the actual need for the units be taken
into account. Essentially, we would suggest that
II'linois consider a process whereby a nore conprehensive
total energy strategy is devel oped with stakehol der
i nput that would essentially serve as a blueprint to
hel p gui de deci sions of various state agenci es, whereby
the conmunities right now, nmany nunicipalities in the
state have conplained, rightfully so, that they fee
somewhat bereft of state assistance in assessing whet her
or not sone of these projects are a best fit for their
particul ar communities.

And under standi ng that, some of these kind of
centralized processes that are available in states such
as California and New York allow for participation of
the public and fund that participation as part of the
permt applications for the plants. They essentially
provide for intervenor funds based on a prorated share
of the proposed generation capacity of the unit which is
al l ocated for expert witnesses and techni cal assistance

to the communiti es and the stakehol ders.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

62
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

For exanple, under Article X of the New York Public
Service Law, it's a 50-50 split on projects where
projects are assessed at $1,000 per negawatt up to
$300, 000 maxi mnum for a project, and that-- those funds
can actually be split between the nunicipality involved
and interested stakehol ders. Any bal ance of funds that
are not exhausted are then returned to the applicant.
That would be-- That's one part. W're not saying that
that's the only solution or the best solution for
Illinois. That's an option that we thought it was
i mportant to nention and provide sonme solution and a
greater sense of control

Many of us in these comunities have been pointing
out that there's a sense of |oss of control under the
| ocal zoning decisions, and those issues are ones that
we feel will only worsen in the future if they're not
addressed now. Again, we're nost concerned, again,
| ooking at the future where we see a situation where
we'll essentially have a Bal kani zed area where sone
communities are nore willing or tolerant to accept these
projects, others will fight themat any cost regardl ess
of the actual value or how neritorious future projects

may be, and we're tal king both about natural gas
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whi ch we believe are going to have sinilar problens in
the future as sone of those projects try to nove
f orwar d.

One of the things that has been nentioned in prior
testinony at length is the experience of California and
what happened this sunmer, and |'d just like to go into
those particular details for a few minutes. The
conventional wi sdomwas that this summer that the entire
energy systemin California was essentially surging out
of control, that the Internet was creating a huge demand
for electricity and a boom ng econony was to blane. The
actual reality is slightly different.

The system peak grew between 1990 and 1999 by | ess
than 2 percent per year and up to about 50,000 negawatts
with 41,000 negawatts representing total demand on the
three largest investor-owned systens. Total state-w de
consunption of electricity increased at less than 1
percent per year from 1990 to 1998. That's actually
| ess than one-third of the rate that California
experi enced during the 80's.

The nost recent data fromthis sumer indicates

that the short-term consunption increases over the first
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weat her playing a strong role. For exanple, in the June
2000 electricity spike, there was a 13 percent increase
in consunption conpared to a nmuch cool er June of the
year earlier.

This was used repeatedly by-- in the nedia to point
out that there was sonething clearly am ss, when in fact
we're talking two slightly different situations. It was
a much cool er year last year in California and also a
much hotter year earlier than anyone expected this year
and there was al so an unusual situation going on
t hroughout the Pacific Northwest this sunmer that was
not the case |last year or the year before. Hydros
contribution across the region was significantly
curtailed. Essentially, rainfall across the Sierra
Nevadas, the Cascade, was much | ower and was actually
near historic low, so much of that generation capacity
was reduced, and in many cases there were constraints in
the systemthat prevented exports into California.

Conplicating matters were that those-- that heat
spi ke al so coincided with a spike in natural gas prices,

sendi ng them above $5 per mllion BTU  The first three
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conpared to the same period a year earlier. The average
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whol esal e electricity price dropped about 40 percent.
However, it is still quite high. [It's ranging at around

7 cents per kilowatt hour, and even-- we believe that
that could return to be a problemin the com ng weeks
and nont hs ahead.

One of the things that was pointed out was that--
again and again in sonme of the testinony was that there
hasn't been new generation added to the systemrecently,
in the last 20 years. There are two different things
that work. One was the decision by California to invest
heavily in energy efficiency and renewabl es, and in the
early 1990's there was a conpromni se reached whereby
there was going to be a great deal of additional natura
gas capacity built, but due to federal intervention
none of that capacity was actually added to the system

Now, that energy efficiency actually has al ready
done a great deal of good. Peak electricity demand has
been reduced about 10,000 negawatts and total annua
consunpti on has been reduced about 15 percent. Since

1990 al one, energy efficiency investnents have reduced
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state-wide electric bills by approximately 2.8 billion
The Rand Corporation recently pegged the per capita
benefits from 20 years of energy efficiency progranms in

California at about $1,000 per capita with cunul ative
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utility investment for such purposes averagi ng only
about $125 per capita, which is a sizable return.

There was also in the last week a spate of good
news for the region, and California-- Governor Davis
all owed several bills to be enacted which will add
approxi mately 2500 negawatts of new renewabl e capacity,
i ncludi ng geothermal, wind and sone snall-scale hydro to
the grid over the next ten years. There's also an
ext ensi on of energy efficiency building on accredits
which are rated as of fering 150 negawatts per year in
sustai ned | oad reduction. There's also a separate R&D
fund which will allow about 5 billion dollars in
i nvestment for energy efficiency, renewabl e energy and
cl ean energy over the next ten years. It's a renewal of
an existing fund that expired this year.

The California experience to us denonstrated that
there are several issues at hand. One is that that
market is very nmuch in transition. They are inconplete

mar ket nechani sns that work today that will not be fully
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converted for several years, and as a result, there are
going to be price spikes and dislocations in the system
but we don't think that the systemitself is

fundanmentally wong. W think that there's significant

opportunities for inprovenent, but we think that system
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will inmprove in weather, and it offers Illinois and
other parts of the Mdwest sone | essons on what could be
used and what might not be the nost useful tools.

I'd like to cut short the rest of ny coments and
place themin the record and use the remaining tine to
answer any questions that | hope you have.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you, M. Silva.

Any questions now?

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: | do. Thank you, M. Silva,
for com ng here today. | do have several questions.
You referred early on in your testinony to your
organi zation's preference that states such as Illinois
focus on renewabl e sources of energy. Wen you use the
termrenewabl e, for the record, could you clarify what
you nean?

MR SILVA: By renewabl e, we would nean wi nd,
sust ai nabl e bi omass, snall-scale hydro and ot her

products that amass certification requirements through
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green or other third-party certification processes that
have eval uated the energy source and have certified that
it actually is provided in a sustainable nmanner and
qualifies.

I'd be remi ss also not in nentioning of

photovoltaic and solar thermal. W're particularly
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interested in what Spire Technol ogy is doing in Chicago
with its thin-filmphotovoltaics, but that is

sonet hing-- all of those technol ogi es are ones that we
support. That al so doesn't nmean that there aren't other
renewabl e technol ogies in the future that we won't turn
and beconme advocates for, but those are the avail able
ones that we see now that hold the nost prom se for
nmaki ng i nmedi ate contributions.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: For naki ng i nmedi at e
contri butions.

MR SILVA:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: You woul d agree, would you
not, though, that sonething |ike hydro on a larger scale
is sinply not practical for a state like Illinois?

MR SILVA. Cee, probably not.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Ckay. Thank you. You al so

focused a great deal of your attention today-- and for
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that we're very appreciative-- on your experiences and
your organi zation's experiences in California and i n New
York. We've heard testinony earlier that other states
whi ch have experienced sonme of the controversies

associ ated with peaker plants include Wsconsin and

I ndiana. Are you aware of any other states?

MR SILVA: I'maware of a variety of unsuccessfu
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si ngl e-cycl e conbustion turbine projects that failed
across New Engl and, nmainly because the pernmitted
devel opers failed to make the case with comunities that
they woul d be useful additions. There are sone projects
that were permitted also in California as single-cycle
projects but they failed to acquire necessary financing
and were withdrawn after obtaining the necessary
permts.

I'd offer we recently took a ook at the avail able
permtting databases and found that there were in the
| ast three years 750 conbustion turbines that received
permts across the United States that we had quick data
for. W believe that nunber's closer to 1,000, so--

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Si ngl e and conbi ned.

MR SILVA: Single and conbined, and | would say

that the majority of those units was clearly
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conbi ned-cycl e configurations. Many of them were going
ininitially or were proposed as in phase one, with the
second phase intended to augnment themto conbi ned-cycle
operation, but very few of the units were bei ng proposed
as dedi cated single-cycle units.
CHAl RVAN MANNI NG Those figures are nationw de?
MR SILVA: Those figures are nationwi de, and |

woul d of fer the caveat that they were fromEPA' s
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permtting division, and they actually have a dat abase
that is not up to date. It's at |east six nonths old.
And we did a considerabl e anount of research on our own,
contacting the regions individually to actually augnent
that database and fill in some gaps in theirs.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: | just want to clarify
too for the record you just nentioned EPA, and you did
earlier regarding the NOx waiver. You're referring to
USEPA as opposed to | EPA, correct?

MR SILVA: Yes. | would refer to it as EPA for
the U S. Environnental Protection Agency and | EPA for
the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Thank you, M. Silva.

BOARD MEMBER LAWION: | would just want to comment
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that |I'm so happy that the NRDC is here today and
participating in our hearings, your organization. Can
you hear nme? Maybe it's not on

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: That's better.

BOARD MEMBER LAWION:  |'Il repeat what | said, for
what it's worth. |'mhappy to see that the Natura
Resour ce Defense Council is participating in our
hearings. | think your organi zati on has played an

outstanding role in the last 30 years, and it's nice to
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see you. You had nentioned sonme of the-- Maybe the
principal part of ny question you answered part of
already since | wote the question up, but you nentioned
that the interest in peaker plants was at |east in part
attributable to the fact that it would cause-- |'m not
sure I"'musing the right expression-- but you mentioned
a | egal backing out of coal-fired units or at least a
di m nution of coal-fired units?

MR SILVA:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER LAWION: | wonder ed whet her you had
gi ven that-- your organi zation had gi ven thought to sone
of the areas of concern that have been expressed in the
various hearings we've had as to matters that m ght not

be favorable fromthe use of peakers. One is the noise
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that's attributable to them the nitrogen oxide that you
at least commented on in part, the extraction of
groundwat er, whi ch you al so had nentioned, and the
matter of proliferation. | just wondered whether those
matters stand al one and apart fromthe fact that they
m ght supplant coal-fired units that have been
consi dered by your organi zati on.

MR SILVA: It's sonething that we have definitely
not come to any final agreenent or decisions on. |It--

There are several different strategies that work. One
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of our-- the overriding principles in our air and energy
programis that the cleanest formof energy is
absol utely without question energy efficiency. |If you
don't have to generate the electricity in the first
pl ace, that's the greatest benefit to the environnent
wi t hout questi on.

As a result, we devote a considerabl e anmount of our
resources and advocacy efforts to energy efficiency
i mprovenent neasures. W currently have a bipartisan
bill before congress which we are hopeful will actually
of fer new tax incentives for energy-efficient
residential and commercial building construction. W

al so obtained a simlar conmercial building construction
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tax code for the State of New York and California.

W' ve al so been at work on upgradi ng and i nproving

nati onal maj or appliance energy efficiency standards.
Cetting back to the peaking units thensel ves, the

natural gas-fired conbustion turbine technol ogy has

several benefits over coal, nost noticeably or both the

fact that in terns of the denmands on water and their

resulting air emssions are a fraction of what a

coal -fired unit is. However, we're currently facing

sonewher e between 55 and 70 proposed projects, and many

of the conbinations that |'ve seen are projects

73
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

involving six to ten turbines. On a hot sumer day when
you have background ozone conditions already near or at
t he one-hour or let alone the eight-hour ozone health
standards, the prol onged operation of any of those
natural gas-fired units will exacerbate ozone snog
pollution. You'll also have fairly nmodest but
noti ceabl e particulate pollution fromthese plants.
However, in conparing themto coal, they are by far and
away the preferred solution, and in our mnds, the rea
urgency is backing out as nuch of that coal
Unfortunately, these units are going in on top of

it. We're under no illusions that these units will be
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| ooking for the sweet spot in the market, and | would
just note that the owners of the existing natural gas
conbustion turbine capacity, including peaking capacity,
in California enjoy a bonanza that boggles the mnd and
has actual ly pushed two of the incunmbent investor-owned
utilities towards what they describe artfully as
t echni cal bankruptcy just fromthis sunmer generating
season alone. So this-- there are no easy sol utions,
unfortunately, to this natter.

Regardi ng the question of noise, | think that sone
of the units arguably coul d have better noi se abat enent

technologies installed. 1In sone cases it's either the
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structure that surrounds the unit mght require
addi tional acoustic shielding, but frankly, there may be
situations where we found that there are projects in the
state of New York that were entirely inappropriate for
t he proposed | ocation based on aesthetic, water, noise
and air pollution contribution, in part because nany of
those host-- potential host conmunities were already
bearing a heavy load in ternms of pollution, whether it
be aesthetic, noise, air or water

BOARD MEMBER LAWION:  Thank you.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Coul d you foll ow up on the New
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York exanple? Didit-- Does New York-- the State of New
York have sonme sort of siting requirenents that were
brought to bear on those issues you just tal ked about in
terns of the New York exanpl es?

MR SILVA: In the New York exanple, we actually
are an intervenor in the TGE At hens, New York, project,
which is a 1,080 negawatt conbi ned-cycle unit,
state-of -the-art technol ogy, and actually, no question
that its air pollution controls are going to be anong
the best in the nation, but what we found was the unit's
going to be on the shoreline of the Hudson River in the
nost sceni c section of the Hudson River Valley.

Aest hetically, the 150-foot tower stack | eaves sonething
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of a footprint or a visual eyesore, and the water
withdrawal s for the unit woul d have been consi derabl e.
One of -- W& were not satisfied with the conditions
proposed entirely on the unit in the granting of its
permt by the siting board. It was required to adopt
dry cooling. And this is sonething that | think we're
goi ng to have to go through again and again on a
case-by-case basis, where are those nbst advanced or
best avail abl e control technol ogies, to borrow a phrase

fromthe dean Air Act, necessary to preserve particul ar
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qualities in the host community that merit such
attention or safeguards.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  You nentioned the need for
the siting authority.

MR. SILVA:  Uh-huh

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Coul d you explain, was that a
local siting authority or was it a state siting
authority? And before | forget, also could | ask you to
explain that-- you said that best available control
technol ogy and that type of thing and you mentioned that
that particular site or unit had to agree to dry
cooling, and then you nentioned the Clean Air Act, and |
woul d have t hought the water w thdrawal question would

be unrelated to the Cean Air Act.
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MR SILVA: I'msorry if | created any confusion
regardi ng your |ast question. Yes, it's unrelated to
the Aean Air Act. The water withdrawal s were in part
because there was sone concern about adverse inpact from
the water withdrawal s on the Hudson River for several
fish species in that section of the Hudson River. |
cannot renenber off the top of ny head if there was any
i npacts for nesting birds, but | don't believe so.

The siting process for the State of New York is
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based on Article X of the New York Public Service Law.
It creates a New York state board on electric generation
siting and the environnent. Mst of the board nenbers
are appoi ntees of the governor or are actually the heads
of various state agencies or their appropriate
representatives. It actually requires a nultistep
review process. There's a prelimninary scoping statenent
that's first required to be submtted. The applicant
then has to publicize the project and actually establish
a presence in the potential host conmunity to ensure
that there's adequate opportunity for the public to gain
i nformation.

I nmentioned in passing that there was a requirenent
that when the full application is filed that a fee equa

to the prorated anount of its naxi num generating
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capacity up to $300,000 be made available to provide for
expert wi tnesses and public assistance to the host
community and any interested parties or organizations,
and that it go through an open hearing process and-- but
ultimately-- and we're not taking a position one way or
the other-- the-- under Article X, the siting board does
have the authority to supersede | ocal rmnunicipal zoning

ordi nance, so that's something that | wanted to point
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out. W're-- Quite frankly, the law was actually
amended in 1999. The Athens project is one of a handfu
that are currently in that process, and so we are
waiting to see what actual experience tells us about in
that process and whether or not it has any pitfalls.

CHAl RVMAN MANNI NG The Athens project is the one on
t he Hudson River you just referred to?

MR SILVA:  Yes.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG | assune that that is not a

natural gas-fired peak-load facility; that's sonething

other than that. It's probably a base-I oad.

MR SILVA: | believe it's-- | was |looking for a
representative to cone-- | believe it is intended to be
a load-following unit that we'll be selling onto the
whol esale market. | am- | don't know off the top of ny

head whet her or not they had a long-termcontract with

78
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

anyone or for any industrial uses, but | believe they're
intending to go onto the whol esal e market, but | woul d--
| can actually find that out easily enough and sinply
insert it into ny conments.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  She nentioned it-- whether--

is it natural gas-fired or is it--
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MR SILVA: Ch, yeah. No, it nost certainly is.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA:  Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Just a follow up on that
previ ous question in the New Engl and experience. As
congested an area as that is, have you heard of any
i nstances where there have been any interference with
aviation with the velocity of these funes of-- plunes
goi ng up?

MR SILVA: As in with conmercial aviation?

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Commercial or private. |It's

probably nore likely to interfere with the snaller

pl anes.
MR SILVA: No, I'"'mnot aware of, and | would note
that there's actually-- | grew up in Boston, and if

anyone's ever flown into Boston airport, into Logan,
when they' re nmaking the final approach, they have to fly

over one of-- a very large coal-fired power plant in the
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final approach, and we've al ways wondered what that was
doing to sonme of the commercial aircraft and the jet
engi nes, but |'ve never heard of any aircraft actually
suffering any harmfromthe flue gas exposure. There
has- -

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: O course | would inagi ne that
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the gas-fired turbine chutes, they exhaust up at a nuch
hi gher velocity than the coal -fired plant woul d.

MR SILVA: It does, and I'd also note that one of
the things is that natural gas just in the-- as a
working fluid and even as an-- there's considerably |ess
volurme to deal with. | nean, the-- just the quantity of
the pollutant expelled by simlar-sized coal-fired power
pl ant conpared to simlar-sized natural gas-fired
facility, it's rather astonishing.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Oh, no-- yeah, no question
about that. |'mtalking about velocity of the
pol I ution--

MR SILVA: Yeah.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS. -- flow going up, because you
have a substantial anount of testinony both in
Naperville and up in G aysl ake about that question

MR SILVA: It can create-- and one of the things

that-- sone of the dispersion nodels have to be quite
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sophi sticated to account for it. There are |oca
mcroclimate variations that can be created, especially
if the unit is going to be located in a river valley,
for instance, where there is a thermal cline that

devel ops during winter nonths. So there are sone areas
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that we're aware of where there are some issues,
especially on |ow or high pressure days. | know there
are several instances along the Chio R ver Valley where
some stacks are actually at nore or less eye level wth
some comunities on-- located on bluffs overl ooking
them and those-- they actually do experience hitting
and ot her downwash effects, but that's fairly unusua
net eor ol ogy and not sonething that we've ever seen as a
comon or nore difficult problem

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: One last item Getting back
to the renewabl es, you wouldn't-- would you or would you
not consider a nuclear plant to be renewabl e?

MR SILVA: That's like nmy favorite trick question
and |'ve got an easy out, because when we're | ooking at
any generation technol ogy, we look at the life cycle of
t he technol ogy, and one of the things that we've
actually been looking at is the waste products in the
construction to the deconm ssioning of the facilities.

Nucl ear has an ongoi ng and wel | -recogni zed waste product
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handling issue that | think until that particular issue
is resolved, it puts the future of the industry in sone
guestion. 1'd just like to note, though, that NRDC is

not opposed to nucl ear technol ogy as a technol ogy. W
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feel that in its current application, the risks outweigh
the current benefits.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Wbuld that be true were you
ever to achieve fusion rather than fission?

MR SILVA: Well, we could conceive some
applications of nuclear technol ogy where there are
actual | y adequat e safeguards in the handling and storage
of spent fuel that would be appropriate. Fusion, we
don't even-- | nean, it's too far down to--

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Pie in the sky.

MR SILVA: Pie in the sky, but a lot of this pie
in the sky--

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: So was the Manhattan Project.

MR SILVA: Right. But so was solar-- thin-film
phot ovol tai cs, but now we're actually manufacturing that
in Chicago. So while we recognize that we don't know
exactly what's going to happen, again, we go back-- we
go through the whole life cycle of the product and see
what it contributes and what its downsides are.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Thank you.
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BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Did | understand correctly
that the gas-fired power plants you were referring to in

the northeast were |argely conbi ned-cycl e?
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MR SILVA: Al nost exclusively.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Al nost excl usivel y?

MR SILVA: | can probably include in ny coments a
list of all the units.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: The-- And are those
dom nantly peaker plants or are they base-Ioad, cover
t he range?

MR SILVA: The-- There are several units that have
been proposed but not yet constructed by severa
successors to the incunbent utility generating assets.
Sonme devel opers actually cane in and bought coal -fired
and oil-fired units and have announced recently that
they intend to repower them and those units are
i ntended to operate as base-load units. The great
majority in ny understanding-- and | don't believe the
econom cs have changed dramatically-- is that the
conbi ned-cycle units that are operating today are
| oad-following units.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Are what?

MR SILVA: Load-foll ow ng.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Thank you.
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MR SILVA: They are internediate. They are

di spat ched-- They are not the first to dispatch, but
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they certainly would be operating well before any peak
dermand condi ti ons.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: What's your under st andi ng
about the nature of the peaker plants that have been
proposed in Illinois in ternms of whether they're single-
or conbi ned-cycl e?

MR SILVA: M understanding is that your-- the
overwhel mng majority of the projects are single-cycle
units. 1've seen sone breakouts, and |'ve only--
believe out of fifty or sixty, five or ten seemto
suggest that they're actually intended to be base-| oad
units. Sone of theminclude sone repowerings in
[1linois.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Well, is there a difference
here, then? Are we talking about two different kinds of
facilities, those that you're encountering in the
nort heast and the ones that are down to the spur of why
we' re here today?

MR SILVA: At first glance, yes, except that's--
there was a kind of gold rush nentality four years ago
in New England. [It-- The perception was you had to get

in quickly into the market, and qui ckly meant getting--
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bul king a jet engine on the ground, and a single-cycle
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was frequently the way to go. Many of those projects
failed. They encountered a rather wlting opposition
fromthe communities and in some occasions the
permtting agencies that felt that this was not the
appropriate technology to be using, and in sone of-- in
many occasions the public service conm ssions also had a
say, and they were | ooking for conbined-cycl e because
the units are often nore efficient.

At the tine there was a linited anount of natura
gas supply available in New England. | know that that's
an issue that is naybe slightly resolved in that the
Alliance Pipeline is starting to serve parts of northern
I1linois, and there's expectation that there will be
addi ti onal capacity expansions in the region. But for
New Engl and, there was al so the issue of sone of the
units, there was also a race to get and lock in
avail abl e natural gas supplies. In fact, two units to
ny know edge are intending to rely exclusively on
liquefied natural gas inported from Al geri a.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: But those are facilities in
New Engl and.

MR SILVA: In New England. They are intending to

ship it over by tanker from Al geria, and those units
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over there have figured out that's econonical

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Do you see anything in that
experience in New Engl and that ought to be object
| essons for us here in Illinois?

MR SILVA: Well, one of themwas that there was

sorme fairly recent argunents put forward agai nst what we

t hought were sone fairly nmarginal projects. | nean,
it's simlar nunbers. It was just a huge vol une, 20, 000
megawatts, | think, in proposed projects at one point,

and there was sonme-- and many of them were being sited
on top of one another, and there were questions about
just-- about whether it would be-- unduly tax not only
the natural gas delivery systemw th construction of all
the laterals; also the question of the host comunities
and the adverse inpacts.

There's a region in Massachusetts, Bl ackstone
Vall ey, imediately north of the Rhode |sland border
that at one point had six or seven projects, and | think
that ultimately four were built, and it was again a
case- by-case assessnent by a variety of siting agencies,
and in nmany cases it uncovered that sone of the
devel opers were actually sinply preparing three or four
sites, and sinply whichever site came through first they

were permitting, so it may be a case that not all of the
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units we're currently facing will actually go in, but |
woul d say that if anything that kind of cane clear was
that there wasn't necessarily the need to rush to a
decision on every single project; that it mght be a
situation where, you know, the first 8 to 10 thousand
nmegawatts mght be a | ogical place to stop when you
consi der where you are and see if this is actually in
the best interests.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: A ot of the downside that
you just rnentioned regardi ng New Engl and' s experi ence
seens to be a downside that was borne by the investors.

MR. SILVA:  Uh- huh

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: A | ot of noney was obviously
poured into planning sone of these and for one reason or
anot her they weren't built. Wre there downsides as
well to the environment in that experience?

MR SILVA: Well, in terns of-- and there were
potential downsides just in the sheer volune of the
nunber, and there's also-- | mean, much of Illinois is
in attainment for nost of the criteria of pollutants, so
nmuch of Massachusetts is not in attainment. For
exanple, a big chunk of Maine is free and cl ear, but
there are portions of it as well. Mst of the states

are all inpacted by ozone precursor pollution, so there
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was al so sonme different issues there. There were

al ready adverse inpacts. |In the case of Illinois, you
have sonewhat of a luxury that you can avoid forcing the
situation as to what's currently experienced across New
Engl and and the eastern seaboard, so in one way we woul d
of fer the object |esson that choose carefully.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: In a slightly different
direction-- but it actually ties inalittle to what you
just noted-- you had stated your opinion that the
presence of a NOx waiver in Illinois acted in some way
to di scourage what you woul d consider to be the optinmm
setup of a power generation mx. Could you wal k us
t hrough sone exanpl es or an exanple as to how you see
t hat nexus between NOx waiver and the ultimte mx of
power generation that devel ops?

MR SILVA: In our eyes, the 182(f) NOx wai ver has
essentially extended the status quo. It's bought
I1linois additional delays for several nore years than
it arguably would have had so that we would be farther
along in actually pursuing reductions froma variety of
sources, nhot just-- power plants | know are your prinmary
focus in this series of hearings, but there are al so
other industrial boilers, which for Illinois are also a

substantial inventory of NOx enissions on their own-- in
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their own right.

There's been nention in passing about conbi ned heat
and power facilities. That's a very innovative
t echnol ogy where the-- in addition to generating
electricity, they also create thermal heat in the form
of steamthat's used usually on site or at an adjacent
facility for a useful process. Projects |ike those
arguably have been in sonme ways frustrated, because
t hose projects arguably woul d have been noving in if--
because the Cean Air Act is supposed to be
technol ogy-forcing and it's supposed to be pushing
existing sources to clean up. The-- Under the Title |
sources woul d have been facing di m nishing all owances
that are required to have been offsets, so there would
have been an incentive to replace these sane sources of
pol lution with cl eaner sources.

I nstead, the 182(f) waiver sinply stalled
everything where it was, and now we're waiting for the
NOx SIP call, hoping it will be a cure-all for all the
woes, and frankly, we don't believe it will get Illinois
into attainnent on its own without additiona
reductions, so in a way, that it's actually di scouraged
the introduction of the nost innovative,

state-of-the-art facilities. And also, fromthe
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regul atory assessnents that we've seen on the air
permts for existing facilities, the region is not

| ooked at el sewhere in the country as a technol ogy

| eader in ternms of requiring the best and

state-of -the-art pollution controls, which we think it
shoul d be doing in recognition of the severity of the
ozone problem In fact, we expect it's going to worsen
consi derably over the next decade here w thout firm
regul ati ons.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: You don't believe that the
NOx SIP call will be technol ogy-forcing?

MR SILVA: The NOxX SIP call is going to get
I[Ilinois towards attai nment of the-- | mean, in our
mnd, the NOx SIP call is just a tool to achieve
assi gnnent of the one-hour ozone standard and hopeful |y
eventual ly the eight-hour ozone standard, but it wll
have a technol ogy-forcing edge to it, but arguably, the
182(f) NOX waiver has-- will mute its-- the ability. |
nmean, we're going to see el sewhere across the upper
M dwest a great deal nore in the way of technol ogy for
sone turnover in fleets and in sources, and we're going
to see sone fairly innovative strategi es fromsone of
the affected sources.

W saw a whol e range of tactics and behaviors in
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the existing ozone-- I'msorry-- NOX tradi ng narket that
serves the ozone transport region in the northeastern
United States, which started in 1999 and entered its
second year this year, and we've seen a |lot of activity
happeni ng there, and a | ot of the sources report to us
and in trade publications that they're notivated in
|arge part by the requirenents of those prograns. In
our mnds, that's kind of a | ost opportunity. They're
not going to recover ability because of the 182(f) N
wai ver .

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: | guess | still don't quite
under st and how t he presence of the caps that occur under
the NOx SIP call won't effectively demand that power
generators generally apply some of the cl eanest possible
technol ogy sinply so that they can enmit under the caps.

MR SILVA: Well, in part-- and |I'mkind of hedging
here because | don't want to rob Brian Urbaszewski of
the Anerican Lung Association of a large part of his
argunment - - but one of the things that we find
probl emati ¢ about the way NOx al | owances are being
all ocated under the NOx SIP call on several state
rul e-makings is that they're favoring the incunbent

sources at the expense of future sources and that
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If you're a coal-fired power plant and you're
sitting on just enough all owances to squeak by, it's
going to cost a-- four or five years down the road,
when-- it's not that first or second year, but it's
going to be the fourth or fifth year of the NOx SIP cal
where it's going to becone increasingly difficult for
new sources to get in. They're going to have to be out
t here | ooki ng and knocki ng off an i ncunbent source,
whereas an i ncunbent source will have a fully anortized
poi nt source doi ng whatever it does, maybe nmanufacturing
process, maybe generating electricity. They're going to
have no incentive unless that new source that wants to
get into the market is willing to outbid them
essentially, and we believe that in sone cases,

i ncunbent sources are sinply going to hoard their

al  onances and they won't be willing to offer theminto
the marketplace. So in that sense, we believe that
there's actually disincentive being created

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA: But that's not really
related, then-- wait a minute. | think-- | lost ny
train of thought here. But you're saying, then, that

that's because of the way that the trade program and the



23

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

al I ocation programunder our SIP call is currently

proposed. | thought your question went to a different
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topic than that, the waiver. Excuse ne. It took ne a
norment to think back, and we've junped fromtopic to
topic, but I think Dr. Flemal was saying, well, how does
the waiver act as a disincentive to innovative

t echnol ogy?

MR SILVA: The waiver essentially excuses or
actual ly conditions NOx reductions within the affected
area, which for our purposes is the Chicago
non-attai nment area and the rest of the Lake-- the
af fected Lake M chigan area under the waiver. Wthout
t hat wai ver, the technol ogy-forcing requirenents of
Title | of the Aean Air Act would require offsets that
woul d actual ly be val uabl e enough to exi sting sources
that there would be an essential-- an incentive for them
to turn over. And we would not see a whol esale
turnover. It wouldn't be anything approachi ng 100
percent. W' re seeing behavior in simlar markets.
About 20 percent of resources would turn over, but that
woul d be enough for better, cleaner technol ogies to get
a foot hol d.

And |'mdrastically oversinplifying the-- that
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argunent, and this is one that |'ve been involved with
for four or five years, and we've argued at length in

various regulatory forms, but 1'll be happy to take
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another crack at it in the comments |'ll actually submt
to see if | can--

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  We woul d appreciate that. It
is adfficult topic.

CHAI RMAN MMANNI NG  Going on to a different one and
maybe final one, if I mght, we've-- you testified early
in your comments about the growh of total electric
demand in the country.

MR SILVA:  Yes.

CHAI RVAN MANNING | think you said in 2020 we'd
have sonething |ike anot her 300,000 negawatt capacity
needed. Do you have any specific information regarding
IIlinois' place in all of that and what maybe IIl1inois’
total electrical denmand increases are going to be over
t he next several years?

MR SILVA: The 2020 figure is based on the--

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG It was 2020 instead of 20127
" msorry.

MR SILVA: Wll, no, out to 2020. The Energy

Information Admi nistration using a forecast nodel, which
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anal ysi s by sone econom sts on a biannual basis, they
tweak to recogni ze changes such as the restructuring in

various states, changes in industry, ownership, the
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entrance of new market participants and changes in
demand across the country to essentially forecast. The
snapshot that they offer is that 300,000 negawatts of
new capacity will be required by 2020 at a m ni num

That nodel al so points out that if you look to
2010, there's going to be an internedi ate need of at
| east 100, 000 negawatts. Now, using that-- their nodel
forecasts that the overwhelming majority of that new
capacity will be natural gas-fired. W-- There are a
variety of other industry-- or in sone of the
proprietary anal yses that indicate that there are slight
differences and different estinmates. It assunes that--
a fairly healthy econony with a load growh that nore or
| ess tracks future growh in gross national product.

Sone people actually take issue with that, noting
that there's actually been a slight decoupling in the
energy intensity of the U S. econony over the |ast few
years. W don't know if that nunber is accurate. It

serves as a useful planning benchmark. Unfortunately,
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that nodel is very difficult to run on a regional basis,
and we are aware that the reliability councils do sone
pl anning out to-- usually in ten-year increnents-- a
year ahead in ten-year increnents for their own

reliability planning purposes, but we haven't seen a
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fairly sophisticated nodel that we have access to, and
being a nonprofit-- a corporation or trade association
may have access to information, so that mght be a
question you mght want to put to sone of the industry
partici pants.

| did see in several instances in testinony
submi tted al ready exanples for-- specifically for MAIN
but quite frankly, | spent about four days |ooking for
simlar data and could find it nowhere anywhere on the
Internet wthout paying several thousand dollars for it.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: | have one nore question.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Go ahead

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: As you know, California and
Il'linois are both in various stages of deregul ation of
their electric utility industries, and we've heard
testinony over the |ast nunber of days about the effect

of deregul ation and the encouragenent that it nay have
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caused to the peaker industry here in this state. Wat
i S your opinion or your organization's opinion wth
respect to the flurry of activity for peaker plants in
the New Engl and states? What precipitated that?

MR SILVA: Part of it was that there was

deregulation in quite a few of the states. That was the
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driving mechanism You can al so go back to sinply FERC
with their O der 888 when they opened up the whol esal e
mar ket, creating conditions where you saw nati onw de
interest in new capacity, and it really was the driver--
restructuring has been the ultimate driver behind this.

Al so, frankly, unabashedly, we've been trying to
hitch our wagon to the train, because we see this as an
opportunity to recogni ze and capture sone of the
environnental externalities associated with electric
generation. W don't think that people should be
polluting air and water to generate electricity in the
way they're currently doing, and we're nmaxi m zing the
opportunity. In sone cases we've been at a state |evel
very successful. Massachusetts, for exanple, we're
backi ng out of a lot of coal-fired capacity right now
and replacing it with nuch cl eaner natural gas

generation. There's a renewed enphasis on energy



18

19

20

21

22

23

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

ef ficiency opportunities and such. So in a way, there
are a lot of-- restructuring is the big driver, but
there are also sone interesting and in sone cases fairly
uni que issues at hand. In sonme cases, sonme people
sinply hate incunbent utility.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: | f you will indulge ne, |

have a coupl e of questions, one that follows up on your
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| ast conmment. You nentioned just now that the northeast
is nmoving towards nore efficient energy production and
al so reduction in demand, and you nentioned that

t hroughout your testinony, and can you tell ne, what was
the inpetus in California and New York, and now you j ust
nmentioned the Northeast too, for this nove toward energy
ef ficiency and renewabl e resources and al so shaving the
need or the demand? Because other trade journals
actually say that we've noved away fromthat.

MR SILVA: Wll, | guess there are-- incunbent
electric utilities-- and if you look at the-- there are
various articles tracking this-- it's really quite
ast oni shi ng-- have | argely abandoned energy efficiency
nmeasures, mainly because they were | argely nmandat ed
progranms by public service conmm ssions across the

country, and as-- for various reasons, including
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restructuring, public service conmm ssions wthdrew those
requirenents, and the result was you' ve seen a whol esal e
ki nd of abandonnent of energy efficiency.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA: That's why they noved away
fromthat, but why did California go-- you nmentioned
that California went towards it.

MR SILVA: California actually took the opposite

tact. It actually goes back to a day starting in 1974,
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with legislation. They actually decided that one of the
things that they were going to pursue was trying to
diversify the energy resources. It was-- '74, obviously
it was a reaction in part to the energy crisis, and they
felt that they needed to kind of diversify their energy
portfolio, and energy efficiency was seen as an
opportunity to | ower demand and kind of soften the bl ow
in the econony.

That actually-- And NRDC was very nuch engaged in
t hat advocacy very early along, along with a host of
ot her organi zations. As much as we'd like to claimal
the credit, there were a |ot of very good peopl e naking
sone very good argunents, including the Union of
Concerned Scientists, utility rate payers, Consuner

Federation of Anerica and others that pushed those very,
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very hard in states like California, which frankly had
very synpathetic regulators and | egislatures that wanted
to see those prograns succeed and created the conditions
for themto succeed

BOARD MEMBER MCFAVWN:  And they were sustai ned over
the last 25 years, then

MR SILVA:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: (kay. On a point-- just a

clarification point, you said that NRDC was concer ned
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about water use in single-cycle units. 1've always
t hought that the single-cycles didn't cause that concern
and it was the conbi ned-cycl es.

MR SILVA: There-- A great nany single-cycle
conbustion turbine projects that we've seen-- not just
the few that we've |ooked at in Illinois, but in--
el sewhere across the country-- rely on once-through
cooling. Wter is used once for evaporative cooling at
the inlet duct and then essentially discarded. That,
dependi ng on the size of the unit-- and renenber, the
si ngl e-cycl e turbines, we've seen anywhere from 80, sone
proj ects have 1,000 negawatts, so the water demand is
going to be quite dramatic. Some of the conbi ned-cycle

units we've seen actually rely on dry cooling where
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there is essentially a process that involves a closed
| oop and one-tine w thdrawal of water

So the demands-- even though the unit-- the
technol ogy's nore efficient, in some applications the
conbi ned-cycl e units can be hogs as well. They can be
quite water intensive. So-- But there is-- there are
technol ogy options. They al so do have sone drawbacks.
One of the things is that they usually suffer derates,
nmeani ng | osses of efficiency, up to about 5 percent when

you inpose thrifty or water conservation neasures on
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t hose.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: I n your-- Wen you say the
word "unit" in that context, are you talking about
si ngl e and/ or conbi ned, the derate question?

MR SILVA: The derate question would apply to both
a single- or conbined-cycle unit. Derate may not be the
perfect term but it would suffer a | oss of efficiency
of up to 5 percent. | think that is what |'ve seen nost
recently in literature.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAVWA: Ckay. One |last question
You nentioned that the NRDC has sought in California and
New York nore conprehensive assessnent of the need for

the units and the siting and all that, and then you
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expl ai ned to us about New York's way of siting units.
Was the NRDC i nvol ved in New York adopting that
approach, or how - have you been successful in seeking
t his--

MR SILVA: W | obbied for portions of amendnments
to the Article Xlaw. It's ny understandi ng that
several NRDC staff-- and this law- parts of this |aw
have been enacted ten to fifteen years-- were integral
inits fornulation and also in its inplenmentation. Sone
of themactually left when the law was originally

enacted, went over to the New York State government, and
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we now have to deal with them and they don't always
listen to our argunments, as the Athens project showed us
that. W were pointing out that no-- this really should
be sonewhere el se, and they were saying, no, they did
everything they actually had to, and we're going to
approve it.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  And it was approved?

MR SILVA: And it was approved.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA:  Thank you.

MR SILVA: Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: | just have a brief question

to clarify the role of that state board in New YorKk.
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Does it then rule on the siting application for every
new generating facility in the state, or does it only
act as an appeal board if a local decision is contested
by one of the parties?

MR SILVA: |'msearching for the-- Wat |'m
searching for is there's a threshold anount generation
Ei ghty negawatts.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD:  Ckay.

MR SILVA: So any unit over 80 nmegawatts, it goes
t hrough the New York Siting Board, and it actually
coordi nates with New York Departnent of Environmental

Conservation in the i ssuance of the state public water
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di scharge pernmit and the Title V clean air permt for
the facility, so the intention and driver behind the
process i s one-stop shopping, and that's when the issue
of the local zoning-- well, the |local zoning process
happens in parallel. |If it actually does cone in
conflict with the siting decision, there is an
opportunity for judicial review, but it trunps |oca
zoni ng deci si ons agai nst approved projects.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD:  Coul d you give us your
opi ni on on whether that's a nodel that woul d be usefu

inlllinois?
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MR SILVA: | think that for Illinois, it wuld be
quite worthwhile to | ook at nobst of these processes that
offer integrated evaluation. | don't think that it's
necessarily the best approach. Another exanple that's
i mredi ately adjacent to you is Wsconsin, which has a
long and a fairly well-- highly regarded anong energy
of ficials and energy anal ysts as having a very good
process of eval uation.

Now, that doesn't nean that the-- it's going to be
a great fit for Illinois' circunstances. | think when
it comes down to it, frankly, you're going to have to
pi ck and choose anong what the existing prograns are

defined, what works best. |'malso saying that,
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frankly, recognizing political realities, that a |ot of
t he stakehol ders in this process have interests that
they're seeking to protect, and they will probably | obby
quite forcefully to protect those interests.

So | am not suggesting that a conprehensive perfect
siting lawis the only thing you should be | ooking at,
but I think the whole process of |ooking at good siting
laws that offer an inclusive process for municipalities
in particular that currently are feeling like they're

getting battered by the current existing process, and
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it's kind of football we have goi ng on between, you
know, the regul ative and state agencies over whether or
not they can stop this, whether or not they have the
authority to make-- issue a noratoriumor not.

I think it would be nore useful actually seeing
where you can actually col |l aborate and add sone
certainty, because the other thing is that nany of these
projects that you' re | ooking at are worthwhile and will
add a significant reliability to the system The
question is that, you know, which ones and how do you
avoi d adverse public health and environnental hotbeds.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD:  Thank you.

MR SILVA: Thanks.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you very nuch, M.
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Silva. W know you've cone quite a distance to speak
today, and we really appreciate it.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG Thank you.

MR SILVA: Thank you very nuch for the
opportunity.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you. M. Silva,
you were going to submt public comments |ater on,
right, as opposed to filing somnething?

MR SILVA. Yes.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: M. Urbaszewski ? (h,
hang on one second. Let's go off the record here, five
m nut es.

(Brief recess taken.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: W' re back on the record.

MR URBASZEWSKI: My nane's Brian Urbaszewski. |'m
the Director of Environnmental Health Prograns for the
Ameri can Lung Association. |'malso a board nenber of
the Illinois Environnmental Council, and I'moffering
joint comments for both organi zations.

As you know, the American Lung Association was
founded in 19-- well, the American Lung Association of
Met ropol i tan Chicago was founded in 1906, and it
actually predates the Anerican Lung Association nationa

organi zation. W advocate for people with |ung di sease
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in Cook County. That's over 14,000 people. The
I1linois Environnmental Council is a state-w de group
representing several dozen environnmental groups and acts
as an environmental education resource and a |egislative
aid to those various groups around the state.

W are both actively involved in the policy
guestion of how to reduce power plant emi ssions in the

state of Illinois. W have been vocal in a current
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rul e-maki ng before the board that will nandate
significant reductions in NOx em ssions fromlarge
el ectrical generation units state-wi de. Likew se, we
bel i eve significant pollution reductions from existing
and future power generation facilities are warranted to
protect the health of Illinois citizens.

I'"d like to again support the testinony submtted a
while ago by M. Keith Harley before this board--
beli eve that was at the Lake County hearing, but I can't
be certain on that-- but stating again that the NOX
wai ver for the Chicago Metro area shoul d be repeal ed.
W believe Governor Ryan has it in his power to do
this. The State of Illinois asked for the NOx waiver
several years ago based on prelimnary airshed nodeling,
and USEPA granted it. However, this occurred prior to

the call for significant NOx reductions in Illinois and
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19 other states under the provisions of the NOx SIP cal
fr om USEPA.

Due to inproved regional ozone nodeling and the
requi renents of the NOx SIP call, Illinois will now be
requiring all EGJ s in Illinois, regardless of
geographic location in the state, to significantly

reduce ozone season NOx enissions. Illinois EPA has
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al so proposed significant NOx reductions from power
plants state-wi de nore than a year before the SIP wll
be in effect, largely due to comitnents needed to
achi eve NOx emissions to get the St. Louis Metro East
area into attainment with the one-hour standard. That
woul d occur in 2003. The NOx SIP call would occur in
2004.

The state is being logically inconsistent in
retaining the NOx wai ver. The waiver is prenised on the
contention that the NOXx reductions in the-- that NOx
reductions in the Chicago ozone non-attai nnent area, the
si x-county region, would increase ozone levels due to a
NOx di sbenefit. Yet in constructing the proposed
IIlinois NOX rule for electrical generation units, the
state is requiring EGJ s within the Chicago ozone
non-attai nment area to reduce NOx em ssions as well as

EQU s |l ocated outside this area. The reasoning used in
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granting this conditional waiver is nmoot if reductions
within the area are being required in order to achieve
regional attainnent with the one-hour ozone standard.
The continuing presence of this waiver is precisely
why peaker sinple-cycle unit power plants are counted as

m nor NOx sources in the Chicago ozone non-attai nnent
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area when they emt less than 250 tons of NOx per year
For the sane reason, conbi ned-cycle steam generation

pl ants could be treated as maj or sources only when they
emt nore than 100 tons of NOX per year. There's a

di fference between the way federal law treats a steam
unit or steam powered unit versus a conbustion turbine
unit. That accounts for the difference between the two
nunbers.

Absent the waiver, any power plant emtting nore
than 25 tons a year of NOx would be required to neet
stricter major source standards. New nmajor sources of
NOx wi thin the Chicago non-attai nment-- ozone
non-attai nment area would therefore be required to neet
| owest achi evabl e emi ssion rates, or LAER for NOx and
be required to subnmit offsets in aratioof 1.3 to 1, as
stated in the Clean Air Act Anendnents of 1990.

The proliferation of these additional NOx sources,

whet her classified as major or mnor, will invariably
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erode benefits achieved through the-- an Illinois cap
and trade programfor NOx under the NOx rule. As these
projects will require NOx credits, all these credits--
all these units that are going in will require NOX

credits under the trading rule, the State of Illinois
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could becone a net inporter of NOXx credits in a
multi-state trading arena. As such, the State would in
actuality be emtting nore NOX than assuned in the
ai rshed nodeling which is being used to assert that
[Ilinois will neet the one-hour ozone standard
requi renents. Sinply, with more NOx being emtted in
the state, it is likely that ozone levels will be higher
than they otherw se would be and as they are assuned in
the attai nment nodel

In addition, ozone has been shown to be dangerous
even at |evels bel ow the one-hour standard, and this
fact pronpted the USEPA to set a tighter eight-hour
ozone standard in 1997. Industry has fought this
standard in litigation, but even the courts have noted
that a scientific basis for establishing a tighter
standard has been nore than adequately proved. The main
question in the case, the court case, is whether
congress is allowed to give USEPA the authority to set

scientific health standards and not whether a rea
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public health need for such a standard exists. W
expect the standard will be uphel d when oral argunents
are made before the U S. Suprene Court next nonth,

starting next nonth.
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The vast nmajority of new peaker or sinple-cycle
conbustion turbine power plants in northeastern Illinois
are being permitted for NOx emission rates in the range
of 15 to 25 parts per mllion, although there is one
project that ranges as high as 42 parts per nillion
There are simlar sinple-cycle facilities in other
states that are being permitted at levels as low as 3.5
parts per nillion. These are achievable rates and are
potentially several times [ower than what is being
permtted in Illinois. This is the LAER the | owest
achi evabl e emi ssions rate, target generators in
northeastern Illinois should be meeting for sinple-cycle
t ur bi nes.

We shoul d not be repeating past mistakes in
approvi ng new power plants when we know with certainty
that these new power plants could and shoul d be required
to neet significantly Iower NOX | evels than those at
which they are currently being permtted. By not asking
for the renoval of the waiver, the Governor is ignoring

this problemand activity di scouragi ng new power plants
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fromneeting tighter and achi evabl e em ssi on standards.
I'd also like to tal k about energy efficiency and

renewabl e energy. Energy efficiency and renewabl e
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energy sources could provide a significant portion of
electrical demand in Illinois. Encouraging the w se use
of electrical power through the use of nmore efficient
lighting, climate control and nmechani cal systens would
negate the need for a portion of new power generation
and the associ ated-- and renove the need or renove the
presence of associated air pollution, noise and water
demands due to fuel conbustion at electrica
generators. For unavoi dable growth in electrica
demand, greater use should be nade of nonpolluting or

| ess polluting renewabl e sources of electricity, and
would rely on the definition that M. Silva gave for
renewabl e sources.

The State apparently wishes to gift significant NOx
al |l ocations under the NOx SIP call, allocations worth
significant dollars in the narket, to the ol dest and
nost polluting facilities in the state. Very few NOX
al l ocations are also being set aside for cleaner
al t hough potentially unneeded, new fossil-fuel ed
generation facilities, largely natural gas peakers and

conbi ned-cycle plants. At this point in time, it
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appears the State does not support NOx allocations for

energy efficiency and renewabl e energy products, even
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t hough such projects-- sorry-- renewabl e energy
projects-- that's a typo-- even though such projects
woul d actively displace NOx emissions in the state. As
M. Silva said, energy efficiency is the best system

It means you don't have to burn fuel and create the
pollution to get the electricity you need.

W have actively called for a set-aside in | EPA
nmeeti ngs and before the board in hearings on the EGJ NOX
rule. W do so here again, as such a strategy could
di spl ace unneeded and pol luting additional electrica
generation units in the state.

The board is charged with determ ning whet her
peaker power plants need to be nore strictly regul ated
than Illinois' current air quality standards and
regul ati ons provide. Even though it can be convincingly
argued that natural gas-- and has been convincingly
argued that natural gas power plants are significantly
cl eaner and produce far fewer em ssions per unit of
electricity produced than existing coal plants for a
nunber of pollutants, this should not be cause for
cel ebration, and | include both sinple-cycle and

conbi ned- cycl e as bei ng cl eaner than existing coal
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generation. This should not be cause for celebration
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Nor should this fact lead to a disnissal of the question
as to whether new peaker power plants need to neet

regul ations far nore stringent than these existing coa
plants. W believe stronger standards are warranted,
particularly in ozone non-attai nment areas where we have
an existing problemand will continue to have a probl em
under the eight-hour ozone standard.

Peaker power plants, sinply because they are being
built after 1977, are already neeting nore stringent air
quality regul ations than the coal plants. Al coa
plants in Illinois are already grandfathered out of ever
neeting LAER or even the | esser best available contro
t echnol ogy performance standards plants built in recent
years have had to neet, and anything built since 1977
that is going to be a nmajor source would have to neet
BACT and LAER

The real question the board shoul d be exam ni ng,
whet her as part of the charge fromthe Governor or of
its own initiative, is why so nmuch deadly pollution
continues to pour fromthe existing fleet of largely
coal plants.

Fine particulate matter is conposed of a nunber of

tiny particles, both solid and Iiquid aerosol, that have
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a dianeter of less than two and a half mcrons.
Inhal ation of fine particles are associated with the
following health inpacts: Upper and |ower respiratory

i nfections, asthma attacks, devel opnent of chronic

bronchitis and, nost inportantly, premature deaths. Due

to these public health threats, USEPA established a fine

particul ate standard in 1997 based on the avail abl e
nmedi cal evidence at that tine. New studies done in
subsequent years have validated the health inpacts
established in prior studies.

El evated |l evels of fine particulate matter are a
problemin northeastern Illinois as well as severa
downstate areas. In 1999, the Illinois EPA collected
accurate annual sanples of anbient l|evels of fine
particulate matter for the first tine. Last year, that
annual standard set by the USEPA was exceeded at twel ve
of thirteen nonitors in the six-county Chicago region
four nmonitors in the Metro East region, as well as at
nmonitors in Decatur, Springfield, Mline and Peori a.
Nationally, fine particulate |evels cause over 60, 000
premature deaths annually, including an estinated over
3,000 deaths annually in Illinois.

Resear ch has shown that 30 to 48 percent of fine

particulate matter in northern Illinois is conposed of
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sulfate particles. Sulfates are the oxidi zed products
of sul fur dioxide, a product enmtted from power plants
burning coal. Illinois coal-fired generation
facilities, in fact, remain the single |argest

i ndustrial sources of sulfur dioxide in Illinois,
accounting for over 75 percent of sulfur dioxide

em ssions fromall stationary sources.

In addition, two of the nobst inpressive nationa
studies on particulates, the 1993 Harvard Six Cties
Report and the 1995 Anerican Cancer Society Study, have
been di sm ssed by industry as junk science in recent
years. However, this past July, the Health Effects
Institute, an institution jointly funded by USEPA and
industry to act as a neutral arbitrator in such
di sagreenments, announced the results of their reanal ysis
of these |andnmark studies. The HEl found that the
studies were valid and surprisingly found slightly
hi gher associ ati ons between particulate |evels and
premature deaths than the original authors clained.
Although it is appropriate to mention that this PM 2.5
standard is in final litigation and is now before the
U S. Suprene Court, the federal Court of Appeals for the
D.C. Crcuit has accepted the fact that the science

behi nd the standards-- the standard verifies that fine
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particul ates are both dangerous and deadly.

It is clear that we have-- already have a serious
air pollution problemdue to the emi ssions fromcoa
plants in Illinois. The State should ensure we do not
create a simlar problemfor the future by allow ng
newer plants to be permitted at higher em ssion |evels
than are prudent and possible. W should hope that the
State would not repeat this nistake of continuing the
grandfat her status of old facilities and nake new gas
facilities as clean as possible. Likew se, the board
shoul d begi n the process of exam ning solutions to the
probl emof high PM2.5 levels in Illinois, especially as
they relate to power generation

In concl usion, we believe Governor Ryan shoul d
officially request USEPA repeal the NOx waiver; new
generation facilities should neet LAER standards in the
Chi cago ozone non-attai nment area; the State of Illinois
shoul d support energy efficiency and renewabl e energy by
i ncluding the 10 percent energy efficiency/renewabl e
energy set-aside in the Illinois NOx SIP call rule, as
suggest ed by USEPA; the existing fleet-- and finally,
the existing fleet of older coal-fired power plants
significantly contributes to unhealthful |evels of

airborne fine particulate matter in the areas where the
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majority of Illinois citizens live.

Such high air pollution levels, tied to thousands
of premature deaths in Illinois every year, ought to be
addressed through board-established Iimts on sul fur
di oxi de em ssion fromel ectrical power generation
facilities.

Thank you. 1'd be nore than happy to answer any
guestions you nmay have.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you, M.
Urbaszewski. | will note for the record that you
provided a copy of your coments, and we will mark those
as Anerican Lung Association Exhibit 1.

MR URBASZEWBKI: Also for the Illinois
Envi ronnent al Counci |

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Right, right.

MR URBASZEWBKI: I'mafraid M. Silva drained al
t he questions out of the board.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: W' re just warm ng up.

CHAI RVAN MMANNING | do. I'Ill start. One of our
speakers in Lake County called for the State to have an
energy-- | think you called it energy strategy, and
assune you're-- some of your remarks are along that sane
vein. In terns of energy reductions and energy

efficiencies that you're calling for, does either |EC or
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Anerican Lung Associati on have any specific ideas in
terms of prograns or incentives that they would urge
upon the State to ook into?

MR URBASZEWSKI: Well, the one-- |-- as for broad
strategies, | probably couldn't provide that right now
One inportant buil ding bl ock towards a conprehensive
strategy and a way to encourage energy
efficiency/renewabl e energy is to nake it part and
parcel of the NOx EGU rule that's before the board right
now. W' ve advocated for this for well over a year
before the Illinois EPA proposed or gave | anguage to the
board for that rule. |[|'ve continued to advocate for
that in board hearings on that rule.

USEPA has put forth gui dance that suggests that a
set-aside be pulled out of the existing EGQJ budget and
set aside for energy efficiency and renewabl e energy
projects. Anything that is not used for those projects
woul d go back to the existing EQU pool, so if it's not
used, it's not permanently lost to existing polluting
facilities.

However, energy efficiency or renewabl e energy
produces electricity or saves electricity and prevents
pollution fromgoing into the atnosphere and causi ng

ozone probl ems downwi nd. Since these allegations have
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been essentially nonetized, a credit is worth noney on
the open nmarket. You can buy and sell it. [|f people
are spending noney to install an energy efficiency
system they are preventing pollution from going out of
a power plant somewhere at the other end of the line.
The peopl e who are spending the noney to save that
electricity should get the nonetized val ue of that
credit. It shouldn't be going to a coal plant or gas
pl ant that doesn't need that credit because it didn't
emt the pollution. W believe that that system shoul d
be instituted.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: |Is that the one that's-- Are
you referring to the third item under your concl usion?

MR URBASZEWBKI: Let me see what the third item-
there's so many nunbers there. Yes. And | should also
say that M. Dan Rosenblum fromthe Environmental Law
and Policy Center is planning to submt extensive
coments, witten comments, in the board hearing on the
EGQU NOx rule on specifically this subject. | just
touched upon it in ny testinony for the board
previously.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: | want to say first of all
hello, Brian. W're seeing you on a regular basis these

days. For those of you who may not be aware, we are
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conducting, sinultaneously with these hearings, hearings
on a proposal that the agency has given us to inplenent
the NOx rule, and M. Urbaszewski has been an active
participant in that proceeding as well and has offered
us some good perspective on that additional rule.

Let nme pose to you a scenario and just get your
reaction on it. The scenario is this: That what we do
with the NOx waiver or what we do with inposition of
LAER or even BACT standards on power plants is largely
irrel evant because with the severe cap that the NOx SIP
call inposes on us, all of the objectives of LAER in
fact are going to be practically nmet anyway. Right or
wrong?

MR URBASZEWSKI: Well, as | said, there are
nunmerous plants that are being pernmitted out there right
now that have enission rates, and there are various
peaker plant proposals out there that are being
permtted at levels far higher than are achievable. If
there was an understanding that the NOx SIP call was
going to put alid on this and we were going to be-- we
as, you know, soreone who woul d be buil ding a peaker
power plant would say, wow, we're going to have to neet

LAER, why aren't they being permtted at those |evel s?
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BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Your concern is the fact that
sonmebody's going to actually be emtting at the | evel
they're permtted.

MR URBASZEWSKI: Correct. Wy would they ask for
that if they weren't going to use it?

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Well, | guess there's sone
possi bl e answers to that, but if in fact-- well, if we--
if infact we can rely on the NOx SIP call putting this
cap on em ssions, which for large electrical generators
woul d be sonething just in excess of 30,000 tons per
year, way bel ow what current em ssions are, is it not
possible that-- permt limts aside, that none of the
em ssions will occur at those |evels?

MR URBASZEWSBKI: Well, there is-- Ckay. Let ne
see if | can separate out. |If | take the coal plants
getting an allocation and enmtting their allocation as a
gi ven and shunt that off to one side, we have all the
existing new facilities that have been permitted, peaker
and conbi ned-cycle, that as you know are vastly
over subscri bi ng the new source set-aside by a factor of,
| don't know, | think six or seven to one. There's six

or seven tines as nuch need as there are actua
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that are going to-- are still going to operate, they're
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going to be forced to buy credits on the market, and if
you assune that the existing coal plants are going to
use their existing allocations to cover their own

em ssions and there's only going to be a portion of
the-- the new source set-aside is only going to cover a
portion of all the new units that are coming on I|ine,
we're going to have to inport NOx credits into this
state, which is to say we're going to exceed what our
NOx budget is, but because you have a nulti-state
trading area, that's all owed.

Now, the NOx nodeling that's | ooking at what the
ozone |levels are going to be in Chicago at sone point in
the future are saying, we're assum ng that what's going
to be emtted in Illinois is only what Illinois is
getting now | believe that's not true. | believe that
we're going to have significant inportation of credits
to cover the enissions that are com ng out of these
plants. Now, if you say that rather than having a
peaker plant emtting at twenty-five parts per mllion
it's going to be required to enit at three and a hal f

parts per million, that means the inportation goes
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II'linois and | ess ozone in the Chicago non-attai nnent

area. Does that answer your question?
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BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: You just did.

MR URBASZEWSKI : That's what we had hoped.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: CGood.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA:  But woul dn't you think that
per haps the power plant-- peaker power plant in your
exanpl e woul d choose to overcontrol maybe down to 3.5
parts per nmillion so that it doesn't have to rely on
finding credits to buy or paying the price for then?

MR, URBASZEWSKI :  We're not seeing that, though
They're being permtted at--

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: | know they're being
permtted, but won't the market force possibly change
that exanple to where they will overcontrol voluntarily?

MR URBASZEWSKI: | think for that-- for the
econom ¢ vision of that peaker plant owner, it would
probably be cheaper to buy credits on the open narket,
and as you've said, as you've seen before the-- in the
NOx hearing, that the costs of those credits are com ng
down as peopl e understand how t he market works and how- -

you know, that's the whole idea behind the market. It's
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My beef with that is is that I'mnot buying that
NOx credit, I"'mnot emtting it, but I'mbreathing it,

as are the hundreds of thousands of people with hung
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di sease ultimately going to be breathing the ozone that
NOx creates.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: But nonet hel ess, barring sone
significant inport of allowances, we would still be
capped at that 30,000 tons, whether it comes froma coa
line, power line, a peaker power plant or any other
Isn"t the net effect on the environment, with that one
exception of whether or not we get into a significant
import market, it is irrelevant as to where the-- what
the source is?

MR URBASZEWSKI: |'mnot too sure | follow your
guesti on.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: |f the environnmental inpact
i s measurable by the total anobunt of em ssions and that
em ssions is capped, does it not nmake-- or is it
irrel evant where the em ssions are comng from what
type of owner they're comng from old or new,
base-1 oad, peaker, whatever?

MR URBASZEWSKI : For the purposes of ozone
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generation, yes. However, you have to put the caveat on
it that if you have an existing coal plant and an

exi sting natural gas-powered plant that are essentially
for all other respects equal in size, etc., capacity to

generate, you're going to see a significantly | ower NOX
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rate with the natural gas plant. You're also going to
see a very, very significant drop in sulfur dioxide
em ssion levels. You're also going to see significant
drops in the anount of nercury emtted fromthat plant.
There's an interesting study where a plant in
sout hern-- south central Illinois, the Gand Tower
plant-- it's owned by Aneren-- is repowering from coa
to run on natural gas, and they're actually increasing
the capacity of the plant. |It's going to put out nore
nmegawatts than it does or historically has. And if |
remenber correctly, the anmount of sulfur dioxide enmtted
fromthat plant is going to go fromthe nei ghborhood of
20,000 tons a year down to approximtely 20, 2-0, tons
per year, so in addition to the NOx and the ozone
effects, there are secondary effects.
BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: The name of that facility
agai n, please?

MR URBASZEWBKI: | think it was G and Tower.
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BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Brand Tower.

MR URBASZEWBKI: G and.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI'S: Gand. For the court
reporter. Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS:. Brian, getting off the topic a

little bit, | appreciate very nuch those points of your
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conclusion. |'d like to see, do you have any comments
or any thoughts on the specific charges that the
CGovernor gave us in setting up these hearings, that we
nmeet stronger site requirenents for peaker plants, etc.
all those points that were laid out by Claire at the
begi nning of the-- do you think you could conment on any
of those?

MR URBASZEWSKI: Well, fromny perspective, what
know nost about is the air pollution health effects.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Right.

MR URBASZEWSKI: | nean, that's what | tailored ny
comrents to. And | guess the one point that | would say
is that, yes, we should have tighter standards for newer
power plants, and it largely revolves around the
continui ng exi stence of that NOx wai ver, which in
reality shouldn't be there. The State in getting the

wai ver said we don't need to have NOx reductions within
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reduce NOx in that six-county area, you actually make
ozone go up.

Vel l, now, under the NOx SIP call rule, we're
seei ng reductions being required frompower plants
state-w de, everywhere, whether you're in the ozone

non-attai nnent area or not in the ozone non-attai nnent
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area. Wy would the State be doing that for attai nnent
reasons if it wasn't reducing ozone, if it wasn't
necessary for attainnent of the ozone standard?
Li kewi se, why woul d USEPA be requiring the State to do
that if it wasn't needed for attainnment of the ozone
standard? So to us, it just doesn't nake sense that
that continues to exist out there, and it's just sort of
going on inertia, but we believe that's one thing the
CGovernor can push along and potentially solve part of
the problem of bringing a | ot of new capacity into the
region by requiring the capacity that is added to the
regi on neet nuch tighter standards.

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Ckay.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: | have a question, Brian.
Thank you. M question is about your second concl usion

whi ch deal s with new generation facilities neeting LAER
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standards in the Chicago ozone non-attai nnent area. W
have two non-attai nnent areas in the state. The Metro
East area is the other one. D d-- Are you not neking
the same conclusion for the Metro East because it's a
different | evel of non-attainnment?

MR URBASZEWSKI: | don't have to. The NOx waiver
does not affect Metro East St. Louis non-attai nnent

area, and so facilities built in the Metro East area are
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already required to neet LAER, and | believe there's at
| east one conbi ned-cycle facility that is proposed for
that region. There nmay be nore. They are going to be
required to neet LAER standards.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: Thank you

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN. | had a question about-- it's
a factual question.

MR URBASZEWSKI :  Sure.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  You mentioned that there are
3,000 prenmature deaths annually in Illinois because of
pol lutants other than NOx, but is that--

MR, URBASZEWSKI :  Fine particul at es.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: Exactly. And | was
wondering, is that nunber taken fromyour Anerican

Cancer Society study?
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MR URBASZEWSKI: It's originally derived froma
study done by NRDC several years ago. |t has been
di scounted. | believe the original nunber was a range
of 3500 to 5,000 deaths state-wide. It was an
estimate. And because of sone overestimations on their
part, we discounted it to say nore than 3,000. The
correspondi ng nunber to the Chicago area is about 2,000
out of that 3,000.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: |If we wanted to revi ew t hat
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article, could we?
MR, URBASZEWSKI: Sure. |It's actually a report.
BOARD MEMBER MCFAVWN. A report?
MR URBASZEWSKI: It's a very thick report,
actually. | can get the title for it. 1'd also like to

point out that this is based on a nunber that said
60, 000 deaths. There's a professor at Harvard School of
Public Health who has said that it's potentially as high
as 70,000 premature deaths, so | just wanted to |let you
know that |'ve discounted this to a very conservative
estimate.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: For us to be able to cite to
that nunber, it would be very hel pful for us to review

t his--
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MR URBASZEWSKI: | can find that.
BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Thank you. The report, and
if it was you that-- the Chicago chapter that discounted

it or if it was discounted by another report.

MR URBASZEWSKI: | can find that information for
you.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Thanks. | had-- Just wal k ne
through this a little bit. |[If in fact the waivers was

repeal ed, where we voluntarily ask for it to be

wi t hdrawn, then the requirenment for LAER would come into
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bei ng for najor sources, now defined at 25 tons per
year .

MR URBASZEWBKI :  Correct.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  And then you al so menti oned
the offsets in aratio of 1.3 to 1. 1Is that a critical
elenment in the scheme to the Anerican Lung Society?

MR URBASZEWSBKI: Yes, and it's operated sonewhat
separately fromthe NOx SIP call trading schene. It
preexists that. This was witten in the later half of
1990. The general idea behind the offsets is that if
you're going to build a new major facility in a
non-attai nment area, you have to draw the permission to

emit NOX in that area at 1.3 tines what you would be
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actually emtting, so the idea is there's a net drawdown
of the total NOx being emtted in that non-attai nnent
ar ea.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: (kay. | thank you for that
expl anation, and | somewhat understand the offset
requi renent, but what | wondered is how inportant is
that element to the Anerican Lung Soci ety? Because
we' ve been tal ki ng about LAER and BACT, and ot her states
have adopted BACT even when they're not required to, and
the sanme could be done with LAER possibly, so | wonder

if you could just address this.
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MR, URBASZEWSKI: W believe it's very inportant.
It's something that's witten into the dean Air Act.
It should be being done right now, but because of this
inertia of the NOx waiver-- which is actually only
granted as a tenporary fix before the final NOx SIP cal
was announced. It doesn't only affect peaker plants.
It affects any |arge najor source of NOx, large
industrial facility or, you know, anything else that
woul d be emtting a large anmount of NOX, so it's not
exclusively linked to this. W believe all ngjor
sources should be neeting these standards. And again,

the sanme goes for LAER Any large facility that's
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coming in emtting N, peaker or sone other type of
i ndustrial facility, should also be required to neet
t hose standards.
BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: Can | ask a real fundanental
question that | probably should know t he answer to?
MR, URBASZEWSKI: | hope | do.
BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  The wai ver, does it have to
do with S enissions?
MR URBASZEWSKI: No, no. |It's only exclusively
connected to NOX.
BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: That's what | thought. Ckay.

MR URBASZEWBKI: And it's related to the ozone
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pr obl em

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  And the definition of mgjor
source, then, is the 25 tons for SO2?

MR URBASZEWSKI :  For NOX.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA:  For NOx. And a major source
of SO in the non-attainment area is defined at what
| evel ?

MR URBASZEWSKI: |'mnot too sure.

UNI DENTI FI ED AUDI ENCE MEMBER:  There's no
non-attai nment ar eas.

MR URBASZEWBKI: W're not-- W aren't--
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UNI DENTI FI ED AUDI ENCE MEMBER

non- attai nnent areas.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Ch,
MR URBASZEWSKI :

pol lutant, |ike ozone,

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN

MR URBASZEWSKI :

criteria for--

BOARD MEMBER MCFAVW:

attai nnent. Forgive ne.

MR URBASZEWSKI :

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG For

Particul ate matter

that's correct.

There are no

Thanks.

and it's derived from SQ2.

is a secondary

Sorry. Thank you for that.

Even though S itself

is

a

| lost sight of the SO

Thank you.

pur poses of the record,

You' re very wel conme
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| EPA indicated that they had indicated before to us that

we're in attai nnent for

BOARD MEMBER MCFAVW:

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:

Ur baszewski

MR URBASZEWSKI :

SQ2.

Lost sight of

opportunity to speak to you.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG

Thank you.

it.

Thank you, M.

Thank you for giving ne the

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: We're going to skip

around a bit on our

list.

The two next

listed
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participants, Susan Zingle and Carol Dorge, will be
avai |l abl e tonorrow norning, so we're going to hold off
on calling themforward at this time and proceed wth
M. Bud Nesvig. Before you begin, | do want to note for
the record you' ve handed ne three docunents, and | think
we' ve al ready had one exhibit entered on your behalf.
Let me doubl e-check. Two, actually. So what we will
do, the first docunent you've handed nme | guess is-- are
your comments for today?

MR NESVIG That's right

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: The comments will be
mar ked as Nesvig Exhibit 3. Second docunent appears to
be a hard copy of a Powerpoint presentation. It |ooks

to be entitled "El wood Energy Il and Elwood Energy I1I1,"
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and we will mark that as Nesvig Exhibit 4. And then
finally, a one-page docunent. At the heading at the top
of the docunent it reads, "Figure 1, U S. Electricity

I mports and Exports 1995-1999," and that woul d be Nesvig

Exhibit 5, and I-- you can go ahead and begi n your
comrents, and I'I|l pass these docunents out to the
boar d.

MR NESVIG Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you.
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MR NESVIG Thank you for listening. | cone from
alittle different interest than polluting as such, but
first, nmy name is Nesvig-- that's NE-S-V as in Victor,
I-Gas in George. M first nanme is Elliot,

E-L-L-1-OT. | ama licensed professional electrica
engineer, retired. M mnmain reason for being here is to
enphasi ze the fact that | did get the opportunity to go
t hrough the Elwood site, which all of you had that
opportunity.

I n going backward as remi nders, Conkd sold their
coal -fueled electric generating plants; approximtely 55
percent of the nornmal needs, about 13,000 negawatts of
capacity. The coal plants are still operating and
pol | uti ng.

Contd has a four-year declining usage contract with
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M ssion Energy, which is owned by Southern California
Edi son, to purchase the output of the coal plants. So
ConEd nust add at | east 3,000 negawatts of sustainable
capacity per year during these four years. Plus, they
need a source of sumertine periodic capacity of about
5,000 negawatts per year, depending on how hot it is in
the summerti ne.

| attended the | EPA permt neeting for El wood I
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and Ill. Prior to the neeting, | was allowed to tour
the El wood Energy | site, as did this board on Septenber
14, 2000. | was inpressed. The four operationa
gas-fired peaker turbine generators are the |arger
peaker units that | have ever seen. Each of the four
can produce 150/172 megawatts of electricity. The
hi gher anmount of 172 is reached when the outside
tenperature is at or bel ow 60 degrees Fahrenheit or
water spray is used to cool the incoming air. The
out put of the generator is connected to a high-voltage
transfornmer and then to a 345, 000-volt ConkEd
transmission line. This is a major effort.

These four units can produce 600/ 688 negawatts,
which is nore than half the output of a nuclear power
generator. This is not what we formerly called a peaker

generator. This is all new General Electric equipnent
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packaged into inpressive units. Probably CGenera

El ectric because they are in the finance and credit
busi ness canme up with the 75 to 100 nillion dollars
needed to fund the equi pnment and installation. Also,
whi ch has been passed out in the data on Elwood | and
proposed Elwood Il and |11, which was presented that

eveni ng.
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During the tour, | was startled to find the El wood
control center manned by four individuals, and this was
| ate Septenber. Were they waiting for requests for
power? | understood that these peaker plants would only
be used in the sumer on 90 degree plus days.

At the | EPA neeting, there were approxinately
fifteen people, three fromI|EPA, about ten or el even
representing the owner, and nyself. |t was suggested
that as | had no financial or enploynent interest in
El wood Energy or the Illinois governnent, | helped to
legitimze the small permt hearing. It |asted about 30
m nutes total

The |1 EPA permt hearing was to finalize the issues
of Elwood Il and Ill construction permts. They would
add five nore single-cycle gas turbine generators, 750
to 860 negawatts in addition to the 600/ 688 already

operational. The total at this site would then be 1350
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up to 1548 nmegawatts, and 1548 negawatts woul d be 50
percent nore than a ConEd nuclear unit. This is a |ot
of stuff. But on top of that, as |I'm sure you know,
there has been permitted for that site but not built is
twenty-- no, is ten 250-nmegawatt units, so if they

decide to construct them there will be 2500 nore
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negawatts of electrical power available fromthat single
site. As | said earlier, that's a lot of stuff. Wth
nore than 19 sites to fill with peaker units, why are
you doi ng this?

Q her questions: Wat happened to the idea of
seeking alternatives before polluting? Two alternative
el ectric power sources are Mexico and Canada. Both have
fuel and already sell power into the United States.
Attached is the 1999 inport/exports with Mexico and
Canada.

Have you determ ned that the ConEd transm ssion
systemis accepting electric power fromall present and
future peaker plants, accepting electric power from
M ssion-- fornmerly ConEd-- coal plants which nmay be
selling all or part of their output out of state,
polluting Illinois and benefiting other states, and
all owi ng Unicomor ConkEd to continue to sell-- to send

el ectric power by contract to other users, such as
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utilities in state and out of state? They are in the
whol esal e business. Wy can't we be told what Uni com
and Contd and our political |eaders have planned for us
in the way of electric power? Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you, M. Nesvig.
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Are there any questions? Thank you very mnuch.

MR NESVIG Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: W appreci ate your
interest in this proceeding.

MR. NESVIG Thanks

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Sure. Let's go off the
record for one brief second.

(Brief recess taken.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: (Okay. Back on the
record. We will go ahead and take testinony from Carol
Dorge at this point on behalf of Lake County
Conservation Alliance. At this point it |ooks like M.
Dorge will be our last presenter this afternoon, and
then tomorrow we will start with Ashley Collins, Susan
Zingle, and then conclude with the Illinois
Envi ronnental Protection Agency. They'll have a pane
of speakers here tonorrow.

Ckay. Before we start, let nme just identify these

docunents that you've given ne. First of all, we have

138
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

your comments, correct?
MB. DORCGE: Correct.
HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Ckay.

M5. DORGE: You have-- The first group of docunents



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

i ncl udes ny coments from Sept enber 7.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Correct. | was just
checking to see if we had any other exhibits fromyou in
this proceeding yet, and I don't think we do, so we wll
mark the first set, being your comments, Dorge--
DORGE-- Exhibit 1. Dorge Exhibit 2 will be the
handout entitled "Peaker Natural Gas-Fired Turbines
Permits Issued." Dorge Exhibit 3 will be the handout
entitled "Peaker Natural Gas-Fired Turbines Pernits
I ssued -- PSD." Wenever you're ready.

Ms5. DORGE: Thank you. M nanme is Carol Dorge, and
I"man attorney representing the Lake County
Conservation Alliance. | presented an initial set of
conment s- -

BOARD MEMBER MELAS: Sl ow down.

M5. DORGE: -- on Septenber 7.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you.

M5. DORGE: As | struggled with the additiona
t houghts | had on the subject of peaker plants and the

question of the many tools and prograns we think we have
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to address environnmental concerns, at |east in your
area, | kept coming back to the thought of these tools

are not working. They cannot be working if 30 years
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after the dean Air Act was adopted, it will still be
non-attai nment for ozone. They're not working if |EPA
i s supposed to be issuing permts within 180 days of
receiving a conplete application and routinely asks for
nore tine.

Thi s begs the question of when an application is
conplete, and we will have nore on that subject |ater
They are not working if they allow sources with truly
nmaj or inpacts to be permitted as mnor sources. These
nmer chant power plants all |ook major and shoul d be
treated as nmajor, and I will have nore on that |ater.

The sources can theoretically be permtted to em't
NOx at |evels of about 75 parts per nillion under a
20-year-ol d new source performance standard when they
can easily achieve 15 parts per mllion or less with
wi dely utilized technol ogy.

The tools are not working if they allow the
permtting of these sources w thout reliable
manuf acturers' data on em ssions of conventiona
pol I utants and toxins during routine operations and

start-up. They are not working if 40 sone permt
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applicants can threaten a |arge increase in enssions of

NOx and other pollutants in Illinois wthout securing
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of fsets and their conbined inpact is not addressed.

They are not adequate if they allow major sources
to be permitted without utilizing state-of-the-art
catal ytic technol ogy, which we argue is truly LAER
They are not adequate if they allow the kind of
variation and quality of information that we have seen
in the applications that we have reviewed. They're not
adequate if citizens are deni ed a neaningful opportunity
to comment in the permtting process, and that includes
provi di ng access to nmanufacturers' performance data and
the calculations that these permts are bei ng based on
and to a tinmely appeal of granting of a permt. They
are not adequate if we do not really know who is going
to own and operate a facility and who will assure that
it's properly decomm ssioned.

The costs to | EPA and the public in terns of
dollars and tine suggest that there nust be a better
way. You could even argue that the public anxiety
caused by these proceedings has its own hurman health
i mplications.

W believe a nunber of things are required in the

context of air permtting, and I would like to refer you
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to my comments of Septenber 7, which is in the packet
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mar ked Exhibit 1. On pages 3 and 4 we list itens of
i nformati on we had asked that the manufacturers be
subpoenaed to provide this information. It is not being
supplied in the permt applications, and we feel that
it's critical information and that permt decisions
shoul d not be nade without this very critica
information, particularly data on em ssions of toxins
and em ssions during start-up

W are al so asking for a better definition of what
constitutes a conplete application. W' ve identified
this information which we believe should-- is
necessarily part of a conplete application. At this
point I would like to denonstrate the need for this
i nformati on by wal ki ng you through sonme application
materi al s.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Sl ow down just a little
bit, please

M5. DORGE: As nmany of you know, | have been
practicing law in the environnmental area for about 20
years. | also have a nmaster's in environmenta
engi neering and worked as an engineer in the Air
Enf orcenent Branch of the EPA. | represented the LCCA

in two Zion peaker plant proceedings, Carlton and Zion
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Energy, which by the way are across the street from each
ot her, and al so worked closely with Scott Evans of O ean
Air Engi neering, who provided technical assistance in

t hose proceedi ngs and who's been involved in the
permtting of many of these facilities on behalf of the
appl i cants.

I'mgoing to discuss portions of the Carlton
application, which was presented as a synthetic m nor.
W al so have many concerns involving Zion Energy, and
"1l touch on those. Zion Energy is a nmuch |arger
facility being permtted as a nmgjor source. |'ve also
prepared a copy of the application, one copy for the
record, which includes the original application to
permt three sinple-cycle GE turbines dated Decenber
1999, a supplenental application for an alternative
configuration with six sinple-cycle GE turbines dated
March 2000, and the applicant's cal cul ati on of em ssions
during start-up and emi ssions of toxins which was
presented for the first tinme at the public hearing on
August 14. | EPA al so requested nodeling, which has not
been included but which was subnitted May 25, 2000. The
em ssion cal cul ati ons were based on internal Mstard
Platt data that was clainmed to be proprietary and was

not substantiated anywhere on the record.
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The second docunent in the packet |'ve handed you
i ncl udes sone of ny notes on what we felt was m ssing
fromthe application. I'mgoing to go through sonme of
the things that we felt were essential and that were
mssing. First--

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  And this is in Exhibit
1?

M5. DORGE: This is Exhibit 1 titled "Notes
10-4-00." The owner/operator of this facility is
identified as Carlton, Inc. Carlton, Inc., is a
home- based busi ness | ocated at John Notch's hone in
Wl nette, and | checked t he phone book yesterday and
confirmed that the residential address and phone nunber
were the same. John, who by the way is a very nice guy,
may not even be easy to reach at hone because he
probably is spending nost of his tine on his boat in
Waukegan Harbor. He is a very pleasant fellow but
that's who was filing the operation-- filing to own and
operate this facility.

The address was not included. There was a genera
address on Ninth Street, so the address was not included
in the application. Form APC- 203, which is for start-up
em ssions, was not conpl et ed.

You' ve seen the kind of general schematics that are
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being included in these applications to show how the
unit operates. W have questions about a nunber of

t hi ngs, but one question we ask is how- who's going to
turn it on, who's going to run it. W've heard that GE
runs sone of these things froma central conputer. W
don't even know who's turning the facility on and who's
going to make sure it only goes on once a day and sone
of the other things that are required.

I could go through all of these. They did not
conpl ete hours of operation. Their-- They purported to
limt their enmissions by limting the anount of fue
that they would burn. They had conflicting stack
hei ghts. There was no toxins information in the permt
application itself submtted at the hearing, and one
figure was off, | believe. One figure for gas usage was
of f by several orders of magnitude. That was never
corrected. The second set of coments applied to the
suppl enental permt application and are simlar.

Now | would like to turn your attention to the next
group of docunents, which are three pages of perfornance
data for the two-turbine configurations, and | would
like to reviewjust a few of the itens on the |ist.
Excuse ne. | coded the colums to allow nme to direct

you to sone of the itenms of greatest interest, at which
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time | will refer youto it. Very difficult to read.
This is somewhat typical performance data. This is
really the only neaningful information that's contained
in the permt applications.

It's ny understanding that these sheets are
typically provided by GE sal es departnent and that sone
nunbers are added, particularly the tenperatures, and
the first line you will see-- this is so hard to read--
line A, alittle bit off, but that woul d be anbient
tenperature. Line His percent of total operation at a
particul ar tenperature.

What you find as you study these sheets is that
pol | utants such as NOx and CO go off-- they increase in
terms of pounds per hour at |ower tenperatures. They're
al so higher when line Cis on, the evaporative cool er
This sheet reflects operation at 95 degrees. Look at--
let's see-- H2 and H4. That's 25 percent of the tine
with the evaporative cooler on and 10 percent of the
time with it off, so that gives you 35 percent of your
time at 95 degrees. Shouldn't be conputed that way.
They shoul d have assuned sonme sort of middle tenperature
range.

As you go across to 11-H |, J, you see they're

proposing to emit 219 pounds of NOX in this case and 243
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tons of CO On the next sheet, or two sheets further
on, they're the sanme sorts of issues, but in their case
they're at 247.7 for NOx and 228.6 for CO.  This

i nformation stated does not include em ssions during
start-up. The source is clearly major. W obviously
nmade those argunents in the permtting proceedi ng.

W stated at the proceeding that we were concerned
that the agency's resources were stretched, that we
couldn't possibly see how they could be handling the
vol ure of applications that they're getting. Wat we--
The point we're trying to nmake here is that it's very
inmportant that if the agency's resources are stretched
that citizens have input in these proceedi ngs and that
there be an early appeal of these decisions so that we
don't nmake the m stake of building these facilities if
they aren't going to be able to operate as ninor
sour ces.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Let e just clarify rea
quick for the record. The pages you were referring to,
the charts that were kind of difficult to read, were the
| ast - -

M5. DORGE: Three or four pages.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: -- last three pages of

what we've nmarked as Dorge Exhibit 1.
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M5. DORGE: Correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG And what permit application is
t his?

M5. DORGE: This is Carlton, Inc., being pernmtted
as a synthetic mnor.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: As a synthetic?

MS. DORGE: Yes, synthetic mnor

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: It's also called North Shore
Power Proj ect.

M5. DORGE: Correct. Carlton is the operator. |'m
going to hand the court reporter this packet, which has
our witten comments in the Carlton proceedi ng, our
witten comments in the Skygen proceedi ng, the Carlton
application nmnus the nodeling, and it al so i ncludes
Skygen's cal culation of air toxins, which I'Il talk
about a little later too.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: W' Il mark that packet,

t hen, as Dorge Exhibit 4.

M5. DORGE: | noted that the data we reviewed did
not represent emssions during start-up. CQur
consultant, Scott Evans, had access to information from

CGE, which sone of the applicants said they did not have,
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our consultant had access to sone information and did
his own cal cul ati ons.

Assum ng one start-up per day, which is what the
permt allowed, em ssions were as much as 30 percent
hi gher than reported on an annuali zed basis, and what
we're hearing is that-- this is conming fromGE- that it
could be as nuch as ten tinmes higher for, say, a period
of twenty mnutes, so we think we're being fairly
conservative in our calculations, but if you're
operating for five hours a day or even ten hours a day,

t hey becone very significant at that level, and that
affects your-- it affects your COprimarily, your NOx to
a |l esser extent, but would also affect the volatiles
such as your toxins, which is-- in this case,

formal dehyde is the primary one of concern. And Scott
Evans' cal culations are included in Exhibit 4.

Now I'd Iike to refer you to Exhibit 2. This is a
sunmary that Susan Zingle prepared of peaker draft
permits. These are the synthetic minors, and if you run
down the center of the page, the NOx colum, you see how
close so many of themare to their major source

threshold. The sane is true for CO. You can al so see--
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We believe that if start-up enissions were included,

nost of these sources would be nmajor and that they are
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not being properly accounted for

There are also problens with the sources that are
being permtted as major sources. Turning to Exhibit 3,
t hese are your PSD sources, your nmjor sources. And we
can just look at-- eyeball this, but you can see they're
being permitted at |levels-- NOX levels as high as 25
parts per nillion but in many cases 9 to 15 parts per
mllion without catalytic controls, where a nunber of
t hem have denonstrated a clear ability to achieve the
| ower levels, which are under 5, in this case reporting
4.5 parts per mllion with catalytic controls.

W al so question why things are so different. [|I'm
| ooki ng at Enron, for exanple, which | understand has GE
turbines. This is a 664-nmegawatt facility with 432 tons
of NOx, where Skygen, our 900-negawatt facility, has 716
tons, which doesn't-- you would think Skygen shoul d be
able to achieve em ssion |levels that Enron can achieve.
They may not be because they have diesel. They're
permtted to use diesel for up to 500 hours per
turbine. W don't understand how t hat coul d possibly be

BACT for these turbines.
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And just this questioning, why do these nunbers
seem so odd? Again, Enron is at 714 for CO  Skygen is

at 258 for CO How could they be so different when
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they're using very simlar technol ogy?

So the question is, why are we pernitting these
sources this way? Wy are they not being required to
account for start-up in their nodeling? | didn't
mention that, nodeling. O course nodeling did not
i ncl ude em ssions for start-up because they weren't
calculated until the last mnute. Wy aren't we getting
the data we need to cal cul ate em ssions and guar ant eed
performance according to nmanufacturers' specifications
for the manufacturers? This information is essenti al

The agency seens to feel conpelled to act on these
appl i cations because of the 180-day clock. There's so
much dependi ng on when an application is deened
conplete. | think we need regul ations to rmake cl ear
what is required, perhaps a history of acting on working
with the applicants and being very flexible, but with
that 180-day clock in the statute, | think it's
necessary at this point to nake it nore clear that
certain things are absolutely required in the case of

t hese peakers.
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Just a couple comments responding to sonme of the
other questions that were raised earlier. W're
obvi ously concerned about the fact that Illinois seens

to be pernmitting even the nmajor sources at |evels that
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are higher than other states, and we think that all of
t hese nerchant power plants-- we can exclude sonme of the
very small ones-- seemto be utility boilers, but
they're just so close to the line that they shoul d
absolutely be treated as najor and be subject to BACT.

W' re concerned that with the SIP call, are-- these
peakers here in Illinois will just purchase their EQJ s
fromout of state, and perhaps there's sone East Coast
states that are so much nore advanced that we won't see
any inmpact on our air quality. You know, | decided to
focus on air again because | think that the problens are
just so blatant. O course we continue to be concerned
about noi se and the other issues that have been
identified.

| also want to nmention that next week |'m attending
an ABA neeting in Pennsylvania, and peaker plants and
NOx are on our agenda. I1'mgoing to try to learn as
much as | can about what other states are doing, and

we'll still get back to you in witing with the



20

21

22

23

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

i nformati on that we've collected. Thank you.
HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Thank you very nuch
M5. DORGE: Can | answer any questions?
BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Ms. Dorge, how many

nmegawatts is the Carlton facility, if you can tell ne?
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M5. DORCGE:  Un-huh

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: The North Shore Power
Proj ect.

MS. DORGE: They're two-turbine configurations.
Let's see.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Let me short-circuit. Your
Exhi bit 2 suggests several figures and I'm not sure how
to read that best, and | don't know whether questions
should be directed to you with respect to that Exhibit 2
or to Ms. Zingle, because you indicated she prepared
thi s docurent.

M5. DORGE: No, | can get that for you and give it
to you |l think tonorrow. | don't recall. There are
two-- There were two determned configurations, and it's
different for the two.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI'S: And should | direct ny
guestions on Dorge Exhibit 2 to you or to Ms. Zingle?

MS. DORGE: | can probably answer nore of the
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techni cal questi ons.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Then woul d you bear with ne
for a monment? Take Reliant-Aurora, that |ine on Exhibit
2, and just so | understand howto read this and so the
court reporter can take this down for the record, could

we go through very quickly those columms and then what's

KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY 108
indi cated there so we know how to read then? For
exanpl e, nanme, Reliant-Aurora, that's pretty
straightforward. Date, | assune, is the date the pernit
was i ssued by | EPA?
M5. DORGE: | believe it's the date of the
application. Can Susan cone up? | think I can answer

nost of your questions.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: There's a lot of naterial,
but 1'd rather we know what it neans.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Ms. Zingle, | would just
ask that you identify yourself for the record.

M5. ZINGLE: M/ nane is Susan Zingle with the Lake
County Conservation Al liance.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you.

M5. ZINGLE: The date is the date the application--
the date on the application when it was sent to the

| EPA.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  And you need to speak
into the m crophone too.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: And not the date the permt
m ght have been issued, right?

M5. ZINGLE: Correct. |It's when the cl ock--

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: And conti nue- -

MS. ZINGLE: Wen the clock started ticking.
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BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Thank you. Continue to the
next col um, please.

M5. ZINGLE: That's the nunber of turbines.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Okay. W're still-- W're
tal ki ng about Reliant-Aurora, okay? Continue on,
pl ease.

MS. ZINGLE: Megawatts is the total nunber of
megawatts fromthose ten turbines.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Thank you.

M5. ZINGLE: The next columm, the [imt nethod,
sone of the pernmits are limted by the amount of natural
gas that is burned. Qhers are linmted by the nunber of
hours. A few of themin the application | couldn't find
that data, so | left it blank.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: And SCF neans?

MS. ZINGLE: Standard cubic feet.
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BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Thank you. Continue on.

M5. ZINGLE: NOx tons, that is the total nunmber of
tons of NOx that would be enmtted by that plant.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Ckay.

M5. ZINGLE: NOx parts per mllion--

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Ch, that's per year, tons
per year?

MS. ZINGLE: Per operating period. So if it's for
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2300 hours, for that anount of gas that's burned, that's
how much NOx will cone out.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S:  Thank you.

M5. ZINGLE: NOx parts per mllionis
self-explanatory. | couldn't necessarily find it in the
applications.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S:  Ckay.

M5. ZINGLE: Tons of carbon nonoxi de, tons of
VOC' s, tons of PM 10, tons of sulfur dioxide, and then a
note on the NOx control nethod the plant is using, if |
could find it.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: And for the record, DLN and
W refer to?

M5. ZINGLE: DLN is dry low NOX; W is water

i njection.
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BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Thank you. Thanks.

MS. ZINGLE: Thank you.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG Can we go back to that limt
nmethod? | don't-- | still don't know what 9878mftcf
means.

M5. ZINGLE: That nmeans that they'll allow the
plant to burn 9800 mllion cubic-- standard cubic feet
of natural gas.

MS. DORGE: The exanple was Carlton. Rather than
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set a limted nunber of their operating hours, set the
limt based upon the gas usage, although they do
estimate their operating hours, and that is in |ast
three pages of this exhibit, 8700 for six turbines,

si x-turbine configuration, and a total of 5400 hours for
the three-turbine configuration

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: And agai n, you're | ooking
at Exhibit 1, Dorge Exhibit 1

M5. DORGE: Exhibit 1, yes.

MS. ZINGLE: For the record, | should say | would
like to thank Marilyn dardy and Betty Asher for their
help that went into getting this information together
They really did a ot of work.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Can | just verify, these
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permts have been issued, then?

M. ZINGLE: Draft permt.

CHAIl RVAN MANNI NG A draft permit-- If it's a draft
permit, it's not been issued. | nean, | don't
under stand whether the draft pernmt been issued. The
permit's issued, | would assunme it's a legally-- a |lega
docunent, a draft permt.

MS. DORGE: These are draft pernits.

M5. ZINGLE: The nost recent ones are drafts. The

ol der ones are in fact final permts.
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BOARD MEMBER MCFAVWA:  Now, the missing infornmation,
is that because it was missing fromthe application?

M5. ZINGLE: O | just couldn't find it.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN. Even in the draft permt?

MS. ZINGLE: It may very well exist. It nmay be
nmore ny skill.

MS. DORGE: Just to clarify the record, the agency
did nmake sonme assunptions as to emissions during
start-up, but they were never-- they were not supported
by any inquiry or manufacturers' information.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Were there assunptions
factored into the nunbers here?

MS. DORGE: They were factored into the draft
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M5. ZINGLE: Sonetines.

M5. DORGE: Soneti nes.

M5. ZINGLE: W went-- On Coastal, if you | ook
about two-thirds of the way down the page, Verena and
attended the public hearing for the Coastal plant in Big
Rock, and it was of particular interest because you can
see it says-- | need a little-- 249.3 tons, which is the
closest |1'd ever seen to the 250, so-- | had not read
the application, so ny first question in public conment

was did that include start-up, and M. Ronai ne's answer
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was no, so obviously inmmediately it's over the 250 tons
and it's going to be a major source. That air hearing

was August 3, and that final permt has not yet been

i ssued, so | don't know what changes they woul d make to
it.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG Coul d we maybe go to a facility
we're little bit famliar with at least? And that's in
your-- in the PSD, the ones that are PSD, the El wood
facilities particularly. You have two |isted, Peoples,
dash, El wood and El wood, and one of them you have as
havi ng fourteen turbines, | assune, when you say nunber

fourteen, and then the other one nunbered two. The
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facility-- The Peoples energy facility, Peoples-- old
Peopl es gas facility that we visited at El wood had four

turbines. Wich of these would be that facility?

M5. ZINGLE: Fromthis, | can't tell you. | have
the permts and the applications both at hone. | could
go back and find it. | can't tell you here today.

CHAI RMAN MANNI NG Ckay.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Back to Dorge 2 for a
monent. |If you read the line that starts with Rolls
Royce, under NOx parts per mllion, there appears to be
t he begi nning of the word "yes." Wat is that a

reference to?
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M5. ZINGLE: |-- That was an editorial comment.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S:  Ckay.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  You have Reliant |isted twce
in the mddle of Dorge Exhibit 2.

MS. ZINGLE: Reliant is building three plants. |
don't know why | didn't put the cities next to the first
two, and then the one in Aurora. It's three separate
permts, three separate facilities.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI'S: Do you know whi ch is which
city?

Ms. ZINGLE: I'msorry. | don't.
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BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S:  Ckay.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG The Indeck on the list, is that
the Indeck that's been referred to in Libertyville
several tinmes in the proceedi ng?

M5. ZINGLE: | believe so, because the date is
February of this year.

CHAIl RVAN MANNI NG Thank you.

MS. ZINGE: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Anything el se for M.
Dorge or Ms. Zingle? And | do note that Ms. Zingle wll
be speaking to us again tonorrow norning.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA:  Wait. One quick question.

The-- Ms. Dorge, |'mhurrying, so maybe the answer is--

160
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

maybe you' ve given us the answer. Forgive nme if |
mssed it. Wiat is the status of the Carlton pernit
application?

MS. DORGE: Public hearings were held on both
August the 13th for Skygen and 14th for Carlton, and we
understand that they're proposing to-- planning to issue
the permt at the end of Novenber.

M5. ZINGLE: Cctober

M5. DORGE: Cctober. Excuse ne. The end of

Cct ober.
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BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Thank you very nuch

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: As | said earlier, that's
going to do it for our presentations today. W wll
reconvene tonorrow norning in this same roomat 10 a.m,
and we have Susan Zingle, Ashley Collins and the |IEPA on
the agenda. | do want to reiterate that anyone who has
made a presentation either today or any of the other
heari ngs can obvi ously suppl enent their ora
presentations with witten public comments, and the
witten public comments will be accepted by the board
until Novenber 6.

That's all | have, so at this point we will go off
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the record and see you tonorrow norning at 10. Thank
you very much.

(Wher eupon the proceedi ngs were

adj ourned until October 6, 2000, at

10: 00 a. m)
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STATE OF ILLINO'S )
) SS
COUNTY OF ST. CLAIR)

|, KAREN BRI STOW a Notary Public and
Certified Shorthand Reporter in and for the County of
St. dair, State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I

was present at the Wlliam G Stratton Building, 401
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South Spring Street, Springfield, Illinois, on Cctober
5, 2000, and did record the aforesaid proceedi ngs; that
sane was taken down in shorthand by nme and afterwards
transcri bed upon the typewiter, and that the above and
foregoing is a true and correct transcript of said
pr oceedi ngs.

I N WTNESS WHERECF | have hereunto set
nmy hand and affixed ny Notarial Seal this 9th day of

Cct ober, 2000.

Not ary Public--CSR

#084- 003688
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